
PLANNING COMMISSION

AGENDA

MAY 14 1 2015

OREGON

I
I
i

i

L

Commission Members

Tim D~lessandro

Norman Fincher

Chris MacMillan

Bill Mansfield

David McFadden

Mark McKechnie

Patrick Miranda

Jared Pulver

Alec Schwimmer

Regular Planning Commission meetings

areheld on the second and fourth

Thursdays of everymonth

Meetingsbegin at 5:30 PM

City of Medford

CityCouncil Chambers

411 W. Eighth Street, Third Floor

Medford, OR 97501

541-774-2380

Page 1



Planning Commission

Agenda
Public Hearing

May 14,2015
5:30 PM

Council Chambers- City Hall, Room 300
411 West Eighth Street, Medford, Oregon

10. Roll Call

20. Consent Calendar/Written Communications (voice vote)

30. Minutes

30.1. Approval of Minutes from the April 23, 2015, meeting.

40. Oral and Written Requests and Communications

50. Public Hearings-Old Business

50.1 CP-14-1I4
The City of Medford is proposing to amend the Urban Growth Boundary (UGB)
for the purpose of providing a twenty-year land supply based on the City's
projected need for residential and employment land. The proposed changes
include: amending (expanding) the Urban Growth Boundary, assigning General
land Use Plan (GLUP) map designations to the areas added to the UGB;
amending the Medford Street Functional Classification Plan of the
Transportation Element of the Comprehensive Plan to include the expansion
areas; and amending some portions of the Urbanization and GLUP Elements of
the Comprehensive Plan to accommodate the UGB amendment. City of
Medford, Applicant.

New Business
50.2 PUD-IS-011/ LOS-IS-0l2
Consideration of a request for a revision to 10th Fairway Office Park Planned
Unit Development and tentative plat for a 7-lot commercial subdivision on two
parcels totaling 3.79 acres located on the south side of North Phoenix Road,
approximately 370 feet south of Hillcrest Road, within an SFR-4 (Single Family
Residential - 4 dwelling units per gross acre) and C-S/P/RZ (Service Commercial
and Professional Office/Restricted Zoning) zoning district. Michael T. Mahar,
Applicant; CSA Planning Ltd., (Jay Harland), Agent.

Page 2



PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA May 14,2015

60. Reports
60.1.
60.2.
60.3.

Site Plan and Architectural Commission
Report of the Joint Transportation Subcommittee
Planning Department

70. Messagesand Papers from the Chair

80. Remarks from the City Attorney

90. Propositions and Remarks from the Commission

100. Adjournment

Page 2 of 2
Page 3



Planning Commission

Minutes
from Public Hearing on April 23, 2015

The regular meeting of the Planning Commission was called to order at 5:31 PM in the
Council Chambers on the above date with the following members and staff in attend
ance:

Commissioners Present
David McFadden, Chair
Patrick Miranda, Vice Chair
Tim D'Alessandro
Norman Fincher
Chris MacMillan
Bill Mansfield
Mark McKechnie
Jared Pulver
Alec Schwimmer

Commissioners Absent
None

10. Roll Call

Staff Present
Jim Huber, Planning Director
John Adam, Senior Planner
Kevin McConnell, Deputy City Attorney
Alex Georgevitch, Acting City Engineer
Terri Rozzana, Recording Secretary
Aaron Harris, Planner \I

20. Consent Calendar/Written Communications

20.1. CUP-14-127 / E-15·026 Consideration of a request for a Conditional Use
Permit to allow for the construction of the replacement of Fire Station #3
and an Exception to driveway width standards on a 23.12 acre parcello
cated on the west side of Highland Drive near the intersection of High
land Drive and Siskiyou Boulevard, within a SFR-6 (Single Family Residen
tial - 6 dwelling units per gross acre) zoning district. City of Medford
(Greg McKown), Applicant; ORW Architecture (David Wilkerson), Agent.

20.2. LOS-15-01S/ E-15-016/ ZC-15-017 Consideration of a request for a con
solidated application consisting of a Zone Change from SFR-10 (Single
Family Residential - 10 dwelling units per gross acre) to SFR- 6 (Single
Family Residential- 6 dwelling units per acre) on one parcel totaling 11.36
acres, a tentative plat for a 57 lot residential subdivision and an associat
ed Exception request seeking relief to side yard setbacks on particular
lots within the subdivision. The subject site is located east of the terminus
of Ford Drive and north of the terminus of Cheltenham Way within cor
porate limits of the City of Medford. HH Medford One, llC, Applicant;
CSA Planning, ltd. (JayHarland), Agent.

Page4



Planning Commission Minutes April 23,2015

20.3. PUD-14-136 /lDS-14-137 /lDS-14-138 Consideration of a request for a
revision to the Cedar landing Planned Unit Development (PUD) and for
approvals of the tentative plats for Sky lakes Subdivision Phase I, a 60 lot
subdivision, and The Village at Cedar landing Subdivision Phase I, a 38
lot subdivision. The PUD revision request applies only to the portion
north of Cedar links Drive and consists of: 1) the addition of longstone
Drive, 2) the loss of one lot in Sky lakes Phase 1, 3) the gain of two lots in
The Village at Cedar landing, and 4) the relocation of pedestrian/bicycle
paths. The project is located on approximately 114 acres on the north
and south sides of Cedar links Drive, west of Foothill Road within an SFR
4/PD (Single-Family Residential - 4 dwelling units per gross acre /
Planned Development) zoning district. Cedar Investment Group llC, Ap
plicant; Hoffbuhr & Associates (Dennis Hoffbuhr), Agent.

20.4. NO FILE NUMBER. Planning Department request for Commission to au
thorize an ad hoc committee to develop design standards for the core ar
ea of the downtown. This is part of the reform of the Central Business
District zoning overlay and implementation of the "Downtown 2050
Plan."

Motion: Adopt the consent calendar.

Moved by: Chair McFadden

Voice Vote: Motion passed, 9-0.

Seconded by: There was no second.

30. Minutes

30.1. The minutes for April 9, 2015, were approved assubmitted.

40. Oral and Written Requests and Communications. None.

Kevin McConnell, Deputy City Attorney, read the Quasi-Judicial Statement.

50. Public Hearings-New business

50.1. CP-1S-022 General Land-Use Plan (GLUP) Map amendment from Urban
Residential (UR) to Service Commercial (SC) on 0.33 acres comprising
three lots located on EastJackson Street between Mae Street and Marie
Street (map/taxlot no. 37-1W-19DD/8400, 8500, 8600). Ryan Kantor,
James & Eva Kell, and Michael Malepsy, Applicant.

Aaron Harris, Planner II, gave a staff report and reviewed the General Land-Use
Plan amendment criteria.

Page 2 ofG
Page 5



Planning Commission Minutes April 23, 2015

Commissioner MacMillan asked if staff determined that no transportation, wa
ter, or sewer improvements were required based on the fact that Public Works
and the Water Commission did not comment. Mr. Harris replied that when there
are no comments it is safe to assumethe infrastructure is sufficient.

Commissioner McKechnie asked if the zoning is changed to Service Commercial
and a commercial use is put there does that require a buffer between that and
the residential uses? Mr. Harris replied that it does. The buffer required will be
10 feet wide, vegetation of various sorts that grows to 20 feet high over a ten
year period, and a six-foot high concrete or masonry wall. That only applies to
new development.

Commissioner Schwimmer asked how the request meets the public need criteri
on when the intent is unknown . Mr. Harris stated that the need for the City is de
termined by the Economic Element and the Housing Element of the Comprehen
sive Plan. The Housing Element calls for 826 acres of urban residential and 290
acres for office uses over the next 20 years. It is such a small area to be changed
that relative to the scaleof need it is inconsequential.

The public hearing was opened and the following testimony was given.

a. Ryan Kantor, 1029 East Jackson Street, Medford, Oregon, 97504. Mr.
Kantor stated that it is his property that is in question. The other two
property owners have no desire to do anything with their property at this
time. Mr. Kantor plans to do a full renovation of the building, turning it
into a small office. It will be attractive from the street instead of the
dumpy looking house it is now.

Chair McFadden stated that he likes the changing of the neighborhood. It shows
a progressive commercial area. Does Mr. Kantor find in his analysis the cost bal
ances out for the developer? Mr. Kantor stated that if Chair McFadden is talking
about the potential income of the property from residential versus commercial
there is an advantage. One can get a better per-square-foot rate. That is one of
the major thoroughfares that one would want attractive buildings to make the
City look better and promote growth. It makes sense considering the entire
street is pretty much all commercial.

b.

Page3 of6

Cynthia Swaney, 320 Marie Street, Medford, Oregon, 97504. Ms. Swaney
reported that the proposed amendment will significantly impact the
neighborhood and those who live in it. She said her neighborhood is al
ready bounded on three sides by commercially zoned lots. They need the
freedom to improve their historical cottages and reap the benefits. She
said the proposed change would not be compatible with the goals for the
neighborhood or the goals of the Medford Comprehensive Plan.

Page 6



Planning Commission Minutes April 23, 2015

Chair McFadden asked if new development along Jackson might provide the
neighborhood in that it would provide a buffer against the traffic noise. Ms.
Swaney said she is concerned that more traffic that will be cutting through to get
to more commercial properties. She added that there are children that play in
the streets especially in the evenings; it is an old-fashioned neighborhood.

c. Dave Swaney, 320 Marie Street, Medford, Oregon, 97504. Mr. Swaney
said he is against the change to the subject properties in the Laurelhurst
subdivision. He gave two reasons: one, the proposal is not compatible
with their historic neighborhood; two, it is a case of mistaken discrimina
tion against Laure/hurst by the City. It is mistake because Laurelhurst has
changed substantially for the better recently. Last year they had to en
dure months of upheaval during the paving of their alleys. The alley pro
ject has one positive outcome; it made the neighborhood aware of the
need to protect their community from actions like the proposal tonight
that work against it. They will be organizing a neighborhood association
to work with the City and the media to increase awareness of threats like
these to their hopes and dreams for historic Laurelhurst.

Mr. Kantor reported that the majority of commercial property is leased. He has
approximately thirty properties across Medford that are leased because they are
consistently maintained and attractive. The need is there. He does not think the
community the Swanys live in behind the major thoroughfare of Jackson Street
will be impacted by traffic. There is no reason for traffic to go through those
streets unless they are going to a residence.

Mr. Harris addressed the requirements for Goal 10, relating to housing. By mak
ing this map change the properties in question still retain the potential for
providing housing. The proposed map designation allows for housing at MFR-30
density.

Vice Chair Miranda asked whether map change allows or requires MFR-30? Mr.
Harris clarified that the change allows for MFR-30 density.

Commissioner McKechnie clarified that this is not a zone change not a General
Land Use Plan map change. It just means that at some point the owners of the
three properties can change from the current zoning to C-S/P. Mr. Harris replied
that is correct.

Alex Georgevitch, Acting City Engineer, apologized that Public Works did not
have a staff report in the agenda packet. The reason they had no comment is
that there was not a trip generation rate increase over 250 trips; therefore, there
are no definable impacts from the transportation side. He added sewer and
storm drainage systems are adequate.

Page4 of6
Page7



Planning Commission Minutes

The public hearing was closed.

April 23,2015

Motion: Based on the findings and conclusions that all the approval criteria are
either met or are not applicable, the Planning Commission forwards a recom
mendation for approval of CP-lS-022 to the City Council per the Staff Report
dated April 13, 2015, including Exhibit A.

Moved by: Vice Chair Miranda Secondedby: Commissioner Pulver

Commissioner Schwimmer stated that this is a General Land Use Plan map
change to the overall zone. It is important that the actual use of the properties
will be utilized whether it is C-S/P or allow high density housing. The need for af
fordable housing in this community is a need that he always looks for. He sup
ports the General land UsePlan map change.

Commissioner Mansfield commented that he appreciates Commissioner
Schwimmer's input. It is very helpful to him. If he understands Commissioner
Schwimmer's comment that there is a need for more area for high-density resi
dential, he accepts that. This is a tough one for Commissioner Mansfield. He is
going to vote no because his belief is there are other areas that can perform this
development.

Roll Call Vote: Motion passed, 7-2 with Commissioner Fincher and Commissioner
Mansfield voting no.

60. Reports

60.1. Site Plan and Architectural Commission

Commissioner Schwimmer reported that the Site Plan and Architectural Com
mission met on Friday, Aprill7, 2015. The consent calendar AC-14-129/E-lS-02s
consideration of site plan and architectural review and related exception was
approved by 5 to 1 vote. The minutes of April 3, 2015, were approved. Under old
business, AC-lS-007/E-ls-009 consideration of plans and associated exception
request seeking relief from required parking standards for 26 residential dwelling
units upon a deck over the Medford Urban Renewal Agency Parking lot Facility
with Skypark asthe applicant. That final order for approval was denied by a vote
of 6 to 1. The new business AC-lS-020/E-lS-021 consideration of a request for
approval of a new Jackson County District Attorney's Office structure including
the exception request seeking relief to requirements for establishing a cross
access easement to an adjoining commercial property and reduction to the re
quired right-of-way width was passed by a vote of 4 to O.

60.2. Report of the Joint Transportation Subcommittee. None.

PageS of6
Page 8



Planning Commission Minutes April 23, 2015

60.3 . Planning Department

Jim Huber, Planning Director, reported that Kelly Akin was out of the office today
and he did not prepare any comments. He would be happy to answer any ques
tions that the Commission might have.

Chair McFadden asked ifthere would be time set aside, at the next Planning
Commission study session, for a report from any of the Planning Commissioners
that attended the APA Conference? Mr. Huber reported that no Planning Com
missioners attended the APA Conference. Mr. Huber and Mr. Harris attended.
They would be happy to give a report to the Planning Commission at their Mon
day, April 27, 2015, study session.

70. Messages and Papers from the Chair. None.

80. Remarks from the City Attorney. None.

90. Propositions and Remarks from the Commission .

Commissioner Pulver asked if the Planning Commission passed on agenda item
20.4 under the consent calendar? Chair McFadden stated that was part of the
consent calendar that was approved. Commissioner Pulver asked that the Com
mission approved it in concept and will be discussed and recruit some of the
Commissioners at a later date? Mr. Adam reported that staff plans to discuss this
at a study session and recruit some Commissioners .

100. Adjournment

The meeting was adjourned at 6:15 p.m. The proceedings of this meeting were digitally
recorded and are filed in the City Recorder's office.

Submitted by:

Terri L. Rozzana
Recording Secretary

Approved: May 14, 2015

Page6 of6
Page 9

David McFadden
Planning Commission Chair



 

 

Planni ng  De par tme nt  

C i t y  o f  M e d f o r d   

Working with the community to shape a vibrant and exceptional city 

MEMORANDUM  

SUBJECT UGB Amendment Project 

FILE NO. CP-14-114  

TO Planning Commission 

FROM Joe Slaughter, Planner IV, Comprehensive planning division  

REVIEWED BY Bianca Petrou, Assistant Planning Director 

DATE May 5, 2015 (for May 14, 2015 PC meeting) 

The Planning Commission held a public hearing on UGBA Phase 2: ESA Boundary 
Amendment at its March 12, 2015 meeting. More than 40 people testified in response 
to this item. The Commission closed the hearing after 4½ hours of testimony but kept 
the record open until March 26, 2015. On April 6, 2015, the Planning Commission met 
with staff at a special study session to further discuss the proposal prior to making a 
recommendation to City Council. Staff compiled all of the written testimony through 
March 26, 2015 and provided these materials to the Commission at the study session. 
Staff also provided a table to help track challenges to the land need figures, a table 
showing acreage figures for each of the urban reserve subareas, a table and a map to 
help track the requests for inclusion that were received at the hearing, and a memo to 
better explain how transportation was scored based on a memo from Kittelson and 
Associates. 
 
At the April 6 study session, the Commission directed staff to provide alternatives 
regarding where to remove roughly 175 acres from staff’s recommendation based on 
the challenges received in the letter dated March 3, 2015 from 1000 Friends of Oregon 
(pages 353–367 of the March 12, 2015 Planning Commission agenda packet) and a 
request to reclassify 22 acres from “developed” (therefore counted as unbuildable) to 
developable. The Commission also asked staff to draft a memo responding to the 
challenges contained in the letter from 1000 Friends of Oregon. The Commission asked 
staff to bring this matter, with the requested alternatives and memo back to the 
Commission at the May 14, 2015 meeting.  
 
All of the acreage to be removed must come from the residential land types, primarily 
from the lower-density residential supply. With the exception of a few areas that have 
been designated exclusively for employment uses, most of the proposed UGB expansion 
areas include a mix of uses. There is a need for large amounts of employment land 
designations because the City adopted the “high growth” scenario in its Economic 
Element. It was a challenge to find suitable locations for all of the employment land 

Page 10



UGBA—staff report supplement  
File no. CP-14-114 
May 14, 2015 

Page 2 of 3  

within the UGB expansion areas and that challenge is amplified by the revised land 
need. Non-regional commercial development needs nearby residential development to 
be viable.  The removal of approximately 175 acres of residential land should be done in 
a way that does not leave commercial land in areas that are not likely to be used.  
 
In developing the three alternatives (attached), staff considered all areas included in the 
original recommendation. The portions of MD-2 included in the recommendation were 
not removed in any of the alternatives because MD-2 provides for the kinds of regional 
commercial development that can serve, and be supported by, users outside of the 
immediate area. This is due in large part to MD-2’s location along Highway 62.  

The future South Valley Employment Center is contained within the portions of MD-5 
recommended for inclusion. This area is needed for future economic development in 
the city and in the region. The South Valley Employment Center is a great fit for a large 
portion of the identified employment land need. The inclusion of the lower-density 
residential property to the north of the South Valley Employment Center provides 
connections between the employment area and existing urban development to the 
north. The lower-density residential area contains the approximately 120 acre 
Centennial Golf Club. The golf course is counted as unbuildable and does not count 
against the City’s supply of developable residential land. The portions of MD-5 east of 
North Phoenix Road and south of Coal Mine Road help to provide for a portion of the 
employment land need while also providing for high and medium-density residential 
development adjacent to a future elementary school. For those reasons, none of MD-5 
was recommended for removal. 

Staff also considered removing areas along the southwest fringe, ultimately deciding 
against it for the following reasons. These areas, MD-7, MD-8, and MD-9, are well suited 
to provide the kinds of mixed-use/walkable neighborhoods required by the Regional 
Plan and to help provide needed affordable housing. The relatively close proximity of 
these areas to the city core, the fact that much of this area is relatively flat, and the 
existing network of gridded streets increase the likelihood of well integrated mixed-
use/walkable neighborhoods developing in these locations. The Housing Element 
identified a large need for affordable housing but it did not identify a solution for 
meeting the need. These portions of the urban reserve can help to meet the need for 
affordable housing by providing land with relatively low development costs. These areas 
are relatively flat, they are relatively well connected to existing development, and they 
score well on serviceability for water, sewer, and transportation.  
 
Attached are the requested memo and three alternatives for the urban growth 
boundary expansion given the revised land need of approximately 1,500 acres. The 
attachments include maps of each of the alternatives and reasons for why each of these 

Page 11



UGBA—staff report supplement  
File no. CP-14-114 
May 14, 2015 

Page 3 of 3  

alternatives has been presented for consideration. A map of the Buildable Lands 
Inventory and its relationship to the urban reserve is also provided for reference.  

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Choose 1 of the 3 staff alternatives, or develop another alternative, for UGB expansion 
and direct staff to prepare findings for recommendation to Council. Staff can return with 
the recommendation and revised findings for approval at the June 11, 2015 Planning 
Commission meeting.  

ATTACHMENTS 

 Memo from staff responding to the letter dated March 3, 2015 from Greg Holmes 
(1000 Friends of Oregon)  

 Revised Recommendation—Alternative 1 

 Revised Recommendation—Alternative 2 

 Revised Recommendation—Alternative 3 

 Map of Buildable Lands Inventory (BLI) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 12



 

 

Planni ng  De par tme nt  

C i t y  o f  M e d f o r d   

Working with the community to shape a vibrant and exceptional city 

MEMORANDUM 

SUBJECT Evaluation of excessive land need arguments 

FILE NO. CP-14-114   

TO Planning Commission 

FROM John Adam, Senior Planner, and Joe Slaughter, Planner IV 

DATE May 6, 2015 for 5-14-2015 meeting 

INTRODUCTION 

The Planning Commission requested at its April 6, 2015 special study session that staff 
provide an analysis of the arguments in a letter from Greg Holmes of 1000 Friends of 
Oregon1, dated March 3, 2015, that challenges some of the City’s land need assump-
tions.  

OVERLAP—PARKS AND “UNBUILDABLE” 

Explanation  

The 1000 Friends letter charges that unbuildable land was improperly excluded from 
open space consideration (p. 357). The problem is that some of the land classified as 
“unbuildable” in staff’s capacity analysis can be classified as usable “open space.” For 
example, a riparian corridor may be part of a park or a trail system; on one hand it is 
unbuildable, on the other it is a component of a recreational use. Because of this over-
lap, some “unbuildable” acreage should be counted as usable “vacant” land.  

Analysis 

The assertion that a portion of the City’s identified park need should be shown as being 
met on acreage that has been classified as unbuildable assumes that unbuildable lands 
will be available for park facilities development. The City does not own any of the land 
that has been identified as unbuildable in the capacity analysis for the urban reserve. In 
order for this land to meet any portion of the identified park need the City would have 
to purchase or otherwise acquire the land.  

The City of Newberg’s UGBA was remanded in part because the city did not show an 
overlap between unbuildable land and identified park needs. In that case the City of 

                                                             
1
  See 3/12/2015 Planning Commission packet, pp. 353–67.  

Page 13



UGBA: Evaluation of excessive land need arguments 
File no. CP-14-114 
5/14/2015 

Page 2 of 8  

Newberg classified at least a portion of the land within the floodplain as unbuildable. 
The court determined that some of the park needs, including sports fields, could be 
expected to be met within the floodplain. Because of this, Newberg should have count-
ed a portion of its park land need as being met within the unbuildable lands, specifically 
within the floodplain. For the Medford UGBA, however, staff did not classify any flood-
plain as “undevelopable.”  

Floodplains have certain development standards that must be adhered to when devel-
oped, but because these areas are developable when those standards are met, they 
have not been counted as unbuildable in the capacity analysis for the urban reserve. 
Since all of the floodplain, unless it is within a riparian corridor or an identified wetland, 
is counted as buildable, the circumstances of the Newberg case do not apply to Med-
ford’s proposal. 

Even if the City chose to say that a portion of the park need would be met on the un-
buildable acreage being included in the UGB, there is no way to determine how large 
this overlap should be. Will all trail development occur within riparian corridors, steep 
slopes, and wetlands? Any acreage value one assigned would only be a guess and there-
fore could easily be challenged as being either too large or too small. It probably cannot 
be more than one or two dozen acres.  

The methodology used for the capacity analysis for the urban reserve was consistent 
with the methodology used for the buildable lands inventory and consistent with OAR 
660-024-0050 and ORS 197.186 and 197.296. The capacity analysis did not count any-
thing as unbuildable that was not supported by state statute but may have undercount-
ed the unbuildable acreage by not counting any portion of the floodplain as unbuildable. 
For these reasons, staff believes the separation of the unbuildable acres and the identi-
fied park need is appropriate and will help to insure that an adequate supply of devel-
opable land will be available for needed park and recreation development for the 20-
year period. 

EXCESS OF “OTHER LAND NEEDS”  

Explanation 

The 1000 Friends letter also points out that cities may use a regulatory “safe harbor” 

net-to-gross factor of 25 percent for housing (net x 1.25). The purpose of this factor is to 
add acres to the net need for rights-of-way, parks, and schools2. The letter says that the 

Housing Element used a net-to-gross factor greater than 100 percent (net x 2.00). It 
concludes that the Element does not justify using a figure so much in excess of the safe 
harbor.  

                                                             
2
  OAR 660-024-0040 (10).  

Page 14



UGBA: Evaluation of excessive land need arguments 
File no. CP-14-114 
5/14/2015 

Page 3 of 8  

A response letter from Michael Savage, CSA Planning3, dated March 26, 2015, states 
that Medford, as a city with a population greater than 25,000, cannot use the safe har-
bor method. However, staff can find nothing in the OAR that prohibited the City from 
using the safe harbor if it had chosen to do so.  

Analysis 

The safe harbor was not used by the consultants who performed the housing needs 
analysis. Instead, for rights-of-way they analyzed existing development to determine 
typical net-to-gross factors for various densities4, and applied those proportionally. For 
parks and schools the consultants determined the existing supply ratios (in acres per 
thousand people), and adjusted those ratios downward for the next 20 years to accom-
modate an expected 35,591 new inhabitants5.  

The resulting additional land need is in the following table. The middle column shows 
the acres needed by type to serve residential development. The rightmost column 
shows the percentage over net need for each type and in total.  

Type Acres 
Percent over Net 

Land Need 

Rights-of-way 98 22% 

Parks 153 34% 

Schools 20 4% 

Total 271 60% 

However, the amounts are adjusted downward by adding in additional supply: 19 acres 
for parks and 26 acres for schools.  

Type Acres 
Percent over Net 

Land Need 

Rights-of-way 98 22% 

Parks 134 30% 

Schools – 0% 

Total 232 51% 

                                                             
3
  See 4/6/2015 study session packet, pp. 83–84 

4
  See Table 37 in Housing Element 

5
  See p. 10 in Housing Element 

Page 15



UGBA: Evaluation of excessive land need arguments 
File no. CP-14-114 
5/14/2015 

Page 4 of 8  

Note the difference between the 1000 Friends argument and the figures above. The 
letter compares 524 acres6 to 455 acres. It errs in summing all those acres because it is 
not comparing the same categories.  

The regulatory safe harbor comprises only three land use categories: rights-of-way, 
parks, and schools. In a comparison of just those three types the Housing Element’s 
calculation results in a net-to-gross factor that is double the Administrative Rule amount 
(51% versus 25%). The figure is undeniably much larger than the safe harbor amount, 
but nonetheless it is based on an analysis of what has been built in existing residential 
areas, and it makes the correct move of reducing the provision ratios for parks and 
schools7.  

The amount of land used by streets, schools, and parks can vary widely from community 
to community, but in staff’s experience the percentage taken up by streets alone is 
usually around 20 percent, so the OAR’s safe harbor appears parsimonious. The City’s 
figure was derived rationally and is a reasonable estimate of need.   

PARKLAND/GOLF COURSE OFFSET 

Explanation 

The 1000 Friends letter argues (pp. 358–59) that Cedar Links was erroneously included 
in Table 40 of the Housing Element as lost open space, whereas it is not a listed as a 
resource in the City’s Leisure Services Plan (2006). The Housing Element states (p. 63) 
that the loss of Cedar Links will be partially offset by the development of the 58-acre 
Howard Sports Park, also privately owned, resulting in a net loss of 44 acres of open 
space. Mr. Holmes argues that those acres should be removed from the need.  

Analysis 

Pages 63–64 and Table 40 in the Housing Element have a curious feature that factors 
into this question: the stated need for schools is 20 acres, but that is only for the Med-
ford School District. The Phoenix–Talent School District has a supply of 26 undeveloped 
acres, but its need is unstated. Presuming their need equals their supply, the “Estimated 
Need” column of Table 40 should show a combined 46-acre need for schools instead of 
just 20 for Medford School District.  

The 1000 Friends letter is correct in its argument, but the offset of 26 acres for schools 
should also be factored in, leaving an excess acreage in Table 40 of 18 acres.  

                                                             
6
  524 acres = “public & semi-public” + rights-of-way (426+98).  

7
  Housing Element, table 40. Parks were reduced from 6.8 to 4.3 per thousand. Schools were reduced 

from 3.4 to 0.6 per thousand. The rationales for the reductions are explained on p. 63. 

Page 16



UGBA: Evaluation of excessive land need arguments 
File no. CP-14-114 
5/14/2015 

Page 5 of 8  

DOUBLE COUNTING  

Explanation 

The 1000 Friends letter also asserts (pp. 359–60) that the land needed for “government” 
(also called “public administration”) was accounted for in two places: once in the Eco-
nomic Element and again in the Housing Element. The letter also argues that the analy-
sis in the Economic Element is superior to that in the Housing Element. The excess 
amount is 135 acres.   

The CSA letter (noted above) counters that the Housing Element has de facto approval 
from the Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) and therefore 
cannot be changed. It also points out that some of the most extensive land users are 
schools, which are always located on residential land.  

Analysis 

The Economic Element says the City will add 908 new jobs for “Public Administration.” 
At a rate of 37.9 jobs per net acre this results in a need for 30 gross acres8. The Housing 
Element says Medford needs 135 acres for “Government” uses in the expansion area9. 
The same need category, in other words, is counted in both elements. One of the two 
estimates should be eliminated unless it or both can be justified.  

The 1000 Friends letter gives three major reasons why the Economic Element’s estimate 
is superior: (1) the Housing Element shows that the government land need does not 
diminish in the future but inexplicably continues to grow in lockstep with population 
growth; (2) the Economic Element appropriately ties land need to projected employees 
per acre in the “public administration” industrial category; (3) most of the government 
uses will be sited on land zoned for employment. 

Staff agrees with 1000 Friends on the first two points, but not entirely on the third. 

First, the City, County, State, and Federal governments will not need the same ratio of 
land to population unless they need to duplicate all current services. Like other kinds of 

                                                             
8
  Derived from Economic Element, Fig. 14, and an unlabeled table in the middle of p. 24, and the net-to-

gross conversion factor of 1.25 from p. 45. However, the Technical Appendix C of the Economic Oppor-
tunities Analysis projects a “Government” office space need of 20.4 acres. Technical Appendix G shows 
that “Government” has no industrial space needs, such as for warehousing, but those types would be 
captured in other appropriate categories, as per NAICS guidelines, so it is difficult to prise out how 
much land is estimated for all government needs in the Economic Element, but it is certainly more than 
30 acres.   

9
  See Housing Element, p. 63, and Table 40. The 135 acres is made up of 64 acres for City, 17 acres for 

County, 22 acres for State, 12 acres for Federal, and 20 for other public agencies 

Page 17



UGBA: Evaluation of excessive land need arguments 
File no. CP-14-114 
5/14/2015 

Page 6 of 8  

infrastructure, once the basic facilities are in place they can be augmented or expanded 
in response to growing demand, but not duplicated. 

Second, the Economic Element calculated employment land needs using common allo-
cations—space per employee, floor-area ratio, building type distributions—by industrial 
classification. It is tied to estimated employment numbers, which in turn are based on 
population projections. This is a more precise and finer level of analysis than can be 
achieved by estimating land need for government uses by using “acres per thousand 
people” and applying (or not) a reduction factor.  

Third, residential zoning districts permit “institutional uses” conditionally10, which in-
clude government offices, fire stations, convention or community centers, auditoriums, 
post offices, schools and colleges, libraries, museums, utilities, park-and-ride lots, 
churches, facilities for organizations and clubs, and cemeteries. Therefore, Mr. Holmes’s 
point that government uses will be placed on land that is zoned for employment is not 
entirely correct. But neither is it too far from the mark.  

The difficulty in sorting this out is the partially overlapping smorgasbord of terms in the 
various documents being compared. Take schools, for example: 

Where it is What it says 

Municipal Code Schools are included in the definition “institutional use.” Until 
recently they were permitted in only residential districts.  

Housing Element Schools are a separate category from the City, County, State, and 
Federal lands under the umbrella term “public and semi-public 
land,” so it does not contribute to the purported excess.  

Economic Element The North American Industrial Classification System (NAICS) cate-
gory “Public Administration” (Sector 92) contains only the office 
uses related to public administration. All other government activi-
ties, such as schools, utilities, transportation and warehousing, 
and utilities are classified in other industrial sectors.  

The only use permitted as an “institutional use” in residential zoning districts and that is 
common to both Elements is “government offices.” Other government uses that fall 
under “institutional” are fire stations and some utilities. So while it is true that some 
government uses will locate in residential districts, the essential question here is: How 
plausible is it that the City will need 135 acres in the residential category to accommo-
date a couple of new fire stations, some land for utilities, and government offices?  

                                                             
10

  Medford Municipal Code, §10.010 (definition) and §10.314, table 6.  

Page 18



UGBA: Evaluation of excessive land need arguments 
File no. CP-14-114 
5/14/2015 

Page 7 of 8  

The CSA counter-argument that the City has a de facto approval of the Housing Element 
from the Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) is not compelling. 
It requires pretending that DLCD will not scrutinize and question every one of the foun-
dation documents that establish Medford’s land need.  

When the City submitted its adopted Housing Element for approval in 2010, DLCD coun-
tered with a letter saying the submittal was incomplete, that a declaration of land need 
requires a response. The Department therefore did not approve the Housing Element, 
saying that foundation documents11 establishing need, plus the boundary and code 
amendments that meet the need, together constitute a complete urban growth bound-
ary amendment project—everything together, not in pieces. The rub here is that no 
constituent part of that project is free from scrutiny and possible challenge. This stand-
point requires cities to work for years building a case before finding out if their UGBA 
gains approval at the State level. It is an unnerving position for cities to be in, but it is 
the reality in which we now operate. If the Economic Element, which was approved by 
the State in 2009, is not safe from inquiry, then an element that allegedly has de facto 
approval certainly is not.  

The CSA letter also proposes that the foundation documents, once adopted, are immu-
table, yet the City already adjusted those same land need figures through Phase 1 of the 
UGB Amendment project when it changed the land-use characteristics of 500 acres 
inside the current urban area12. Phase 1 was a partial response to employment and 
residential land need. Refining the details is inevitable in such a large and complex pro-
cess as an urban growth boundary amendment because new information is always 
coming forward.  

The letter also lumps in “Schools” with the government land need although it does not 
constitute part of the purported excess; pointing out that schools are extensive land 
users is therefore not relevant. Even if it were, Table 40 in the Housing Element shows 
only a 20-acre need for the next twenty years.  

In the absence of a reasonable explanation why the City needs 135 acres for govern-
ment uses in the residential category, staff concurs with the charge that it should be 
removed. However, given the correct observation above that governmental land uses 
can occur in most zoning districts, perhaps the City should have some “flexible acres” 
within the overall land need that it can allocate between employment and residential 
categories as the boundary expansion proposal becomes finalized. It would be useful as 

                                                             
11

  The foundation documents are: Buildable Lands Inventory; Population Element; Housing Element; 
Economic Element 

12
  The City asked for and was given acknowledgement of the Phase 1 changes because several land 
owners were eager to rezone and develop their land under the new designations.  

Page 19



UGBA: Evaluation of excessive land need arguments 
File no. CP-14-114 
5/14/2015 

Page 8 of 8  

a means to “fine tune” the final expansion. Perhaps a few dozen acres would be a rea-
sonable amount. 

SUMMARY 

Of the various charges of land excess in the 1000 Friends letter, staff believes that the 
City correctly calculated unbuildable lands and the land need for rights-of-way, parks, 
and schools. However, staff must concur that the private park land need was erroneous-
ly included, and that the government land need was double-counted; respectively, 18 
acres and 135 acres should be removed. With the addition of 22 acres owned by OSU 
that has to be reclassified as “vacant” in the UGBA capacity analysis, staff advises that 
the Planning Commission remove 175 acres from the expansion proposal.  

Page 20



Revised Recommendation: Alternative 1 

 

Recommendation: Remove a portion of MD-4 from staff’s recommendation. 

Why: In many cases the loss of residential uses in the expansion areas would make 
commercial development unlikely. Because it is surrounded by the existing city limits, 
MD-4 is nearly surrounded by existing residential development and therefore 
commercial development on this property could be viable without the addition of large 
tracts of residential development. The inclusion of the southern third of MD-4, primarily 
for commercial development, would support the development of a small commercial 
center around the intersection of Hillcrest Road with North Phoenix Road–Foothill Road.  
Commercial development already exists on the southeast corner of the intersection, 
there is an existing winery near the northeast corner (southwest portion of MD-4), and 
commercial development around the intersection has been further encouraged through 
the adoption of the SALs (UGBA Phase 1). 

There are more than 200 acres of nearly vacant residential land within the existing UGB 
and city limit within a half mile of MD-4. The inclusion of all of MD-4, with 
approximately 200 acres for residential development, would bring that total to more 
than 400 acres available for residential development in the immediate area. Not all of 
MD-4 is needed to provide for residential development in the vicinity over the next 20 
years.  

A map showing the location of staff’s recommendation as it relates to buildable land 
(data from adopted Buildable Lands Inventory) is attached for reference. With the 
exception of the east portions of MD-5, MD-4 has the greatest amount of land adjacent 
to it that is both within the existing UGB and available for residential development. 
When attempting to spread the supply of developable lands around the City it is 
necessary to consider not only the lands being added to the UGB but also the 
developable land within the current UGB. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 21



§̈¦5

MD-5

MD-3

MD-P Prescott

MD-1

MD-2

MD-4

MD-7

MD-5

MD-9

MD-8
MD-6

MD-P Chrissy

MD-9

MD-9

��238

��62

N
FO

O
TH

IL
L

R
D

E VILAS RD

W MAIN ST

C
R

A
TE

R
L

A
K

E
A

V

TA
B

L
E

 R
O

C
K

 R
D

N
P

H
O

E
N

IX
R

D

B
ID

D
L

E
R

D

STEWART AV

SOUTH STAGE RD

E BARNETT RD

H
A

N
L

E
Y

 R
D

BEALL LN

GARFIELD ST

SA
G

E
R

D E MCANDREWS RD

K
IN

G
S

 H
W

E PINE ST

U P
T

O
N

R
D

A
R

N
O

L
D

 L
N

S
 C

O
L

U
M

B
U

S
 A

V

W 8TH ST

N
 3

R
D

 S
T

BELLINGER LN

H
U

L
L

 R
D

E
A

N
T

E
L

O
P

E
R

D

E MAIN ST

M
C

L
O

U
G

H
L

IN
 D

R

G
R

IF
F

IN
 C

R
E

E
K

 R
D

H
A

M
R

I C
K

R
D

E JACKSON ST

W PINE ST

W
MCANDREW

S
RD

N
C

EN
TR

A
L

A
V

ROSS LN

TAYLOR RD

F
R

E
E

M
A

N
R

D

CEN
TE

R
D

R

N
C

O
L

U
M

B
U

S
A

V

V
O

O
R

H
IE

S
 R

D

STEVENS ST

SCENIC AV

N HASK
ELL ST

W VILAS RD

SOUTH STAGE RD

Proposed Urban Growth 

Boundary Amendment

Alternative 1

0 0.5 1

Miles

Expansion Areas with proposed

General Land Use Plan designations

Removed from Proposed UGBA Map 

(dated 01.20.15)

Urban Reserves

CM SC H
I GI

U
H

U
M U
R

Urban Growth Boundary

s^̀

PS

04.29.15

Note:  Unbuildable areas not depicted on map

Page 22



Revised Recommendation: Alternative 2 

 

Recommendation: Remove the northwest portion of MD-3 from staff’s 
recommendation. 

Why: Staff’s original recommendation included most of MD-2 and two large portions of 
MD-3, containing both commercial and residential components. The portions of MD-2 
are a better fit for employment uses than either of the portions of MD-3 due to MD-2’s 
proximity to Highway 62 and existing commercial uses. Therefore, staff dismissed 
removing MD-2. There is some capacity within the existing UGB for residential 
development in the vicinity of MD-2 and MD-3, although it is not as extensive as around 
MD-4 and MD-5. This remaining capacity, along with the inclusion of much of MD-2 and 
one large portion of MD-3, will provide adequate land for residential development in 
the area to support the required employment land. 

Staff prefers the removal of this portion of MD-3 rather than the southeast portion 
(Alternative 3) because that portion helps to provide for the extension of Owen Drive 
and the eventual connection of Owen Drive with Foothill Road. A parallel route to Delta 
Waters Road would be more useful for traffic distribution than a north/south 
connection from Delta Waters Road to a rural Coker Butte Road. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 23



§̈¦5

MD-5

MD-3

MD-P Prescott

MD-1

MD-2

MD-4

MD-7

MD-5

MD-9

MD-8
MD-6

MD-P Chrissy

MD-9

MD-9

��238

��62

N
FO

O
TH

IL
L

R
D

E VILAS RD

W MAIN ST

C
R

A
TE

R
L

A
K

E
A

V

TA
B

L
E

 R
O

C
K

 R
D

N
P

H
O

E
N

IX
R

D

B
ID

D
L

E
R

D

STEWART AV

SOUTH STAGE RD

E BARNETT RD

H
A

N
L

E
Y

 R
D

BEALL LN

GARFIELD ST

SA
G

E
R

D E MCANDREWS RD

K
IN

G
S

 H
W

E PINE ST

U P
T

O
N

R
D

A
R

N
O

L
D

 L
N

S
 C

O
L

U
M

B
U

S
 A

V

W 8TH ST

N
 3

R
D

 S
T

BELLINGER LN

H
U

L
L

 R
D

E
A

N
T

E
L

O
P

E
R

D

E MAIN ST

M
C

L
O

U
G

H
L

IN
 D

R

G
R

IF
F

IN
 C

R
E

E
K

 R
D

H
A

M
R

I C
K

R
D

E JACKSON ST

W PINE ST

W
MCANDREW

S
RD

N
C

EN
TR

A
L

A
V

ROSS LN

TAYLOR RD

F
R

E
E

M
A

N
R

D

CEN
TE

R
D

R

N
C

O
L

U
M

B
U

S
A

V

V
O

O
R

H
IE

S
 R

D

STEVENS ST

SCENIC AV

N HASK
ELL ST

W VILAS RD

SOUTH STAGE RD

Proposed Urban Growth 

Boundary Amendment

Alternative 2

0 0.5 1

Miles

Expansion Areas with proposed

General Land Use Plan designations

Removed from Proposed UGBA Map 

(dated 01.20.15)

Urban Reserves

CM SC H
I GI

U
H

U
M U
R

Urban Growth Boundary

PS

04.29.15

s^̀
Note:  Unbuildable areas not depicted on map

Page 24



Revised Recommendation: Alternative 3 

 

Recommendation: Remove the southeast portion of MD-3 from staff’s 
recommendation. 

Why: Staff’s original recommendation included most of MD-2 and two large portions of 
MD-3, containing both commercial and residential components. The portions of MD-2 
are a better fit for employment uses than either of the portions of MD-3 due to MD-2’s 
proximity to Highway 62 and existing commercial uses. Therefore, staff dismissed 
removing MD-2. There is some capacity within the existing UGB for residential 
development in the vicinity of MD-2 and MD-3, although it is not as extensive as around 
MD-4 and MD-5. This remaining capacity, along with the inclusion of much of MD-2 and 
one large portion of MD-3, will provide adequate land for residential development in 
the area to support the required employment land. 

Staff prefers Alternative 2, the removal of the northwest portion of MD-3, rather than 
this Alternative because the southeast portion helps to provide for the extension of 
Owen Drive and the eventual connection of Owen Drive with Foothill Road. A parallel 
route to Delta Waters Road would be more useful for traffic distribution than a 
north/south connection from Delta Waters Road to a rural Coker Butte Road. 
 

 

Page 25



§̈¦5

MD-5

MD-3

MD-P Prescott

MD-1

MD-2

MD-4

MD-7

MD-5

MD-9

MD-8
MD-6

MD-P Chrissy

MD-9

MD-9

��238

��62

N
FO

O
TH

IL
L

R
D

E VILAS RD

W MAIN ST

C
R

A
TE

R
L

A
K

E
A

V

TA
B

L
E

 R
O

C
K

 R
D

N
P

H
O

E
N

IX
R

D

B
ID

D
L

E
R

D

STEWART AV

SOUTH STAGE RD

E BARNETT RD

H
A

N
L

E
Y

 R
D

BEALL LN

GARFIELD ST

SA
G

E
R

D E MCANDREWS RD

K
IN

G
S

 H
W

E PINE ST

U P
T

O
N

R
D

A
R

N
O

L
D

 L
N

S
 C

O
L

U
M

B
U

S
 A

V

W 8TH ST

N
 3

R
D

 S
T

BELLINGER LN

H
U

L
L

 R
D

E
A

N
T

E
L

O
P

E
R

D

E MAIN ST

M
C

L
O

U
G

H
L

IN
 D

R

G
R

IF
F

IN
 C

R
E

E
K

 R
D

H
A

M
R

I C
K

R
D

E JACKSON ST

W PINE ST

W
MCANDREW

S
RD

N
C

EN
TR

A
L

A
V

ROSS LN

TAYLOR RD

F
R

E
E

M
A

N
R

D

CEN
TE

R
D

R

N
C

O
L

U
M

B
U

S
A

V

V
O

O
R

H
IE

S
 R

D

STEVENS ST

SCENIC AV

N HASK
ELL ST

W VILAS RD

SOUTH STAGE RD

Proposed Urban Growth 

Boundary Amendment

Alternative 3

0 0.5 1

Miles

Expansion Areas with proposed

General Land Use Plan designations

Removed from Proposed UGBA Map 

(dated 01.20.15)

Urban Reserves

CM SC H
I GI

U
H

U
M U
R

Urban Growth Boundary

PS

04.29.15

s^̀
Note:  Unbuildable areas not depicted on map

Page 26



MD-5

MD-3

MD-P Prsct

MD-1

MD-2

MD-4

MD-6

MD-5

MD-9s

MD-7mid

MD-P Chrsy

MD-8

MD-7n

MD-7s

MD-9n

MD-9mid

U G B A
Buildable Lands Inventory

and Urban Reserve

Medford Planning Dept.
2015-04-16

$

0 0.5 1 1.5 20.25

Miles

Legend
Major street extensions (concept)

UGB expansion_staff proposal

Urban reserve
Medford

Buildable lands inventory
Developed
Vacant
Redevelopable
Partially developed residential
Unbuildable
Public Right-of-Way

Note that BLI data
are from 2007

BLI was adopted
in 2008

Page 27



City of Medford

Planning D epartmen t
Workin g with the community to shape a vibrant and exceptional city

STAFF REPORT
for a type-C quasi-judicial decision: Planned Unit Development & Land Division

PROJECT

FILE NO.

TO

FROM

REVIEWER

DATE

io" Fairway Office Park PUD
Applicant: Michael Mahar; Agent: CSA Planning

PUD-15-011/LDS-15-012

Planning Commission for 05/14/2015 hearing

Sarah Sousa,Planner IV

Kelly Akin, Principal Planner~
May 7,2015

Use

Overlay
GLUP

C-S/P and C-C (Community Commercial)
Office Park and Vacant Land

BACKGROUND

Proposal

Consideration of a request for a revision to ro" Fairway Office Park Planned Unit
Development and tentative plat for a 7-lot commercial subdivision on two parcels
totaling 3.79 acres located on the south side of North Phoenix Road, approximately 370
feet south of Hillcrest Road, within an SFR-4 (Single Family Residential - 4 dwelling units
per gross acre) and C-S/P (Service Commercial and Professional Office) zoning district.

Subject Site Characteristics

Zoning Single Family Residential- 4 dwelling units per gross acre
Service Commercial and Professional Office
Planned Development
Urban Residential
Service Commercial
Single Family Homes I Vacant land

Surrounding Site Characteristics

North
Zoning:
Use:

Page 28



io" Fairway PUO
File no. PUO·15-011/LDS-1S -012

StaffReport
May 7,2015

South

Zoning:
Use:

Zoning:
Use:

Zoning:
Use:

SFR·4
Golf Course

C-S/P
Office Park

SFR-4
Single Family Homes

Related Projects

CP-02-038 Comprehensive Plan Amendment
ZC-03-041 Zone Change
PUD-04-161Planned Unit Development
AC-04-295 Site Plan & Architectural Commission Review

Applicable Criteria

Medford Municipal Code §10.23S(D), Approval Criteria for Preliminary PUD Plan

The Planning Commission shall approve a Preliminary PUD if it concludes that
compliance exists with each of the following criteria:

1. The proposed PUD:
a. preserves an important natural feature of the land, or
b. includes a mixture of residential and commercial land uses, or
c. includes a mixture of housing types in residential areas, or
d. includes open space, common areas, or other elements intended for

common use or ownership, or
e. is otherwise required by the Medford Land Development Code.

2. The proposed PUD complies with the applicable requirements of this Code, or
a. the proposed modified applications of the Code are necessary for the

project to be consistent with the criteria in Section 10.235(C)(1)(a-e), and
b. the proposed modifications enhance the development as a whole

resulting in a more creative and desirable project, and

Page 2 of 10

Page 29



io" Fairway PUD
File no. PUD-1S-011/LDS-1S·012

StaffReport
May7,2015

c. the proposed modifications to the limitations, restrictions, and design
standards of this Code will not materially impair the function, safety, or
efficiency of the circulation system or the development as a whole.

3. The property is not subject to any of the following measures or if subject thereto
the PUD can be approved under the standards and criteria thereunder:
a. Moratorium on Construction or land Development pursuant to DRS

197.505 through 197.540, asamended.
b. Public FacilitiesStrategy pursuant to DRS 197.768 as amended.
c. limited Service Area adopted as part of the Medford Comprehensive

Plan.

4. The location, size, shape and character of all common elements in the PUD are
appropriate for their intended use and function.

5. If the Preliminary PUD Plan includes uses not allowed in the underlying zone
pursuant to Subsection 10.230(0) (8)(c), the applicant shall alternatively
demonstrate that either:
1) demands for the Category "A" public facilities listed below are equivalent

to or less than for one or more permitted uses listed for the underlying
zone, or

2) the property can be supplied by the time of development with the
following Category "A" public facilities which can be supplied in sufficient
condition and capacity to support development of the proposed use:
a. Public sanitary sewerage collection and treatment facilities.
b. Public domestic water distribution and treatment facilities.
c. Storm drainage facilities.
d. Public streets.

Determinations of compliance with this criterion shall be based upon standards
of public facility adequacy as set forth in this Code and in goals and policies of
the Comprehensive Plan which by their language and context function as
approval criteria for comprehensive plan amendments, zone changes or new
development. In instances where the Planning Commission determines that
there is insufficient public facility capacity to support the development of a
particular use, nothing in this criterion shall prevent the approval of early phases
of a phased PUD which can be supplied with adequate public facilities.

6. If the Preliminary PUD Plan includes uses proposed under Subsection
10.230(D)(8)(c),approval of the PUD shall also be subject to compliance with the
conditional use permit criteria in Section 10.248.

Page 3 of 10

Page 30



io" Fairway PUO
File no. PUO-15-011/LDS-1S-012

Staff Report
May 7,2015

7. If approval of the PUD application includes the division of land or the approval of
other concurrent development permits applications as authorized in Subsection
10.230(C), approval of the PUD shall also be subject to compliance with the
substantive approval criteria in Article /I for each of the additional development
applications.

Medford Municipal Code §10.245(A)(3), Revision or Termination of a PUD

3. Burden of Proof; Criteria for Revisions: The burden of proof and supporting findings
of fact and conclusions of law for the criteria in Subsections 10.235(D) or 10.240(G), as
applicable, shall be strictly limited to the specific nature and magnitude of the proposed
revision. However, it is further provided that the design and development aspects ofthe
whole PUD may be relied upon in reaching findings of fact and conclusions of law for the
criterion at Subsection 10.235(D)(5). It is further provided that before the Planning
Commission can approve a PUD Plan revision, it must determine that the proposed
revision is compatible with existing developed portions of the whole PUD.

Medford Municipal Code §10.270, Land Division Criteria

The approving authority (Planning Commission) shall not approve any tentative plat
unless it first finds that, the proposed land division together with the provisions for its
design and improvement:

(1) Is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, any other applicable specific plans
thereto, including Neighborhood Circulation Plans, and all applicable design
standards set forth in Article IV and V;

(2) Will not prevent development of the remainder of the property under the same
ownership, if any, or of adjoining land or of access thereto, in accordance with
this chapter;

(3) Bears a name that has been approved by the approving authority and does not
use a word which is the same as, similar to, or pronounced the same asa word in
the name of any other subdivision in the City of Medford; except for the words
"town", "cltv", "place", "court", "addition", or similar words; unless the land
platted is contiguous to and platted by the same applicant that platted the land
division bearing that name; or unless the applicant files and records the consent
of the party who platted the land division bearing that name and the block
numbers continue those of the plat of the same name last filed;

(4) If it includes the creation of streets or alleys, that such streets or alleys are laid
out to be consistent with existing and planned streets and alleys and with the
plats of land divisions already approved for adjoining property unless the

Page 4 of 10

Page 31



io" Fairway PUD
Fileno. PUD-l5-0l1/LDS-1S-012

Staff Report
May 7, 2015

approving authority determines it is in the public interest to modify the street
pattern;

(5) If it has streets or alleys that are proposed to be held for private use, that they
are distinguished from the public streets or alleys on the tentative plat, and
reservations or restrictions relating to the private streets or alleys are set forth;

(6) Will not cause an unmitigated land use conflict between the land division and
adjoining agricultural lands within the EFU (Exclusive Farm Use) zoning district.

ISSUES ANDANALYSIS

Background

The io" Fairway PUD is located near the io" fairway of the Rogue Valley Country Club
golf course. The Planning Commission adopted the final order for approval of the
project on September 9, 2004. The approval of the Preliminary PUD Plan included a
mixed-use development of nine single family residential lots and three commercial lots.

The project includes four phases. The residential lots make up Phase One and the
remaining commercial lots are phased individually. The final plan for all of the phases
was approved in October of 2005. The first phase received final plat approval in August
of 2006. To date, a few single family homes have been built and the remaining lots are
vacant.

Scope of Project

The subject of this review includes a revision to the PUD and a land division for the
commercial lots. The PUD revision criteria state that the review shall be strictly limited
to the specific nature and magnitude of the proposed revision. This means the review
is generally limited to the changes and does not necessarily warrant a new review of the
PUD as a whole .

The amendment to the PUD involves the commercial component of the project. The
original layout included three commercial lots within common area and parking. The
new layout doubles the commercial lots, creating a total of six. With a total of six
commercial lots, the phasing would increase from three to six for the commercial
portion as each commercial building constitutes a phase. The building pads also
decrease so that the total square footage of future buildings is reduced from 33,096 to
20,900 square feet.

The other requested change involves a condition tied to the Preliminary PUD Plan
approval which restricted the uses of the buildings to general office use. The applicant
would like that condition removed in order to allow for medical office uses as well.

Page 5 of 10

Page 32



io" Fairway PUD

File no. PUD-15-011/LDS-15-012

Site Plan & Architectural Commission Review

StaffReport
May7, 2015

As part of the Preliminary PUD Plan approval, the Commission did not delegate any
aspect of the project to the Site Plan & Architectural Commission. However, it was
noted that separate review would follow for the architecture of the buildings since
architectural plans were not submitted with the Preliminary PUD Plan.

On March 4, 2005, the Site Plan & Architectural Commission reviewed and approved the
commercial buildings within the project (AC-04-295). However, since the Planning
Commission didn't specifically delegate any aspects of the review to the Site Plan &
Architectural Commission, the Site Plan & Architectural Commission approval is not
appended to the Final PUD Plan approval; therefore, the Site Plan & Architectural
Commission approval is expired. It is the applicant's intent to submit to the Site Plan &
Architectural Commission for review of each individual building.

Commercial Lots

Planned Unit Developments allow for the creation of substandard lots. In the case of
the commercial lots, they do not all meet the code standards related to street frontage,
lot size, lot width, and lot coverage, etc. The commercia/lots are set within a common
area, much like pad lots. However, pad lots require the buildings to be built within four
feet of the property line. As a point of clarification, the lots are not pad lots as
described in Medford Land Development CodeSection 10.703.

Revision to Number of lots

The request is to change the number of commercial lots from three to six. However, in
comparing the originally approved PUD Plan with the revised PUD Plan, it is hard to see
a difference {Exhibits G & B}. This is because the lots are oriented similarly but just
divided in half, to make for six smaller lots instead of three larger ones. This is a minor
change in the scope of the project.

Commercial Useson Lots 1-2

Another item to note is that the commercial lots 1-2 are zoned residential. This is
permitted under a deviation allowance for PUD's listed in Medford Land Development
Code Section 10.230{D}(7)(c), which permits the Commission to approve 20 percent of
the gross area of the PUD with uses not permitted in the underlying zone. Since this
area is within 200 feet of the exterior boundary of the project, a Conditional Use Permit
was also required. The Commission approved a Conditional Use Permit in conjunction
with the original Preliminary PUD Plan approval allowing commercial use in this area.
There is more discussion below regarding the permitted commercial uses.

Page 6 of 10

Page 33



io'.. Fairway PUD

File no. PUD-1S·Oll/LDS-15-012

Restricted Uses

Staff Report
May 7,2015

As mentioned above, one of the requested changes includes the removal of the
condition from the Preliminary PUD Plan approval restricting the usesof the commercial
area to general office. At that time, the buildings were significantly larger and therefore
didn't sustain enough parking for more intensive uses such as medical offices. Now that
the square footage of the buildings has been reduced, the applicant proposes that
medical offices, as well as general office uses, be allowed. In regards to the parking, the
Site Plan & Architectural Commission will review the buildings and parking in future
reviews. Staff recommends the Commission allow the medical office and general office
uses as requested.

Access I Circulation I Site Plan

Access to the entire project is from North Phoenix Road to Signature Court. Signature
Court to the west serves the residential lots while the private way also provides access
to the office park portion of the site to the east. The general configuration of the site
plan of the commercial area, including the parking and pedestrian connections, remains
the same as the Final PUD plan approval. As it functions as previously approved, no
further examination is necessary.

Signage

The site plan submitted, shows 11 sign locations (Exhibit D). Six of the signs are shown
along North Phoenix Road and five are within the common area and on the individual
lots. Medford Land Development Code Section 10.1400 permits one ground sign per
street frontage for each parcel of land.

The original PUD Plan approval included two signs at either side of the entrance of the
development: one for the residential side and one for the commercial side of the
project. Staff recommends the Commission keep with the original approval and allow
one commercial sign at the entrance (there is one existing sign already installed) to
display the future businesses. In addition, staff recommends compliance with the
Medford land Development Code in allowing one sign per commercial lot near each
building. A condition is included allowing one freestanding sign along the North
Phoenix Road near the entrance of the development and one sign per building within
the subject tax lot or common area for a total of seven new freestanding signs (the
eighth sign is already installed). All wall signage is subject to the standards listed in
Medford land Development CodeSection 10.1400.

Page 7 oflO

Page 34



io" Fairway PUD
File no. PUD-1S·011/LDS-15-012

Landscaping

Staff Report
May7,2015

The Final PUD Plan approval included a final landscape plan. However, the applicant has
submitted a new landscape plan for review for the commercial area. The Medford Parks
& Recreation Department reviewed the plan and has several required changes (Exhibit
M).

Bufferyard

A bufferyard is comprised of an area of land between two properties that includes
landscaping and walls or fencing in order to mitigate adverse impacts between adjacent
land uses. Medford land Development Code Section 10.790 requires bufferyards on
adjoining properties in instances where the development of a more intensive use is
proposed, such as a commercial building next to a residential property. In this case the
land to the south is zoned residential, but is developed as a golf course. Due to the type
of use adjacent, the Commission's original approval of the project required only half the
number of trees specified for a Type A bufferyard. Other than landscaping, the
bufferyard included a wall varying in height from four to eight feet with a decorative 3
foot wrought iron style fence on top.

The Commission has the authority to approve adjustments to the buffer in instances
when the proposed project abuts existing development where uses are sufficiently
compatible so that the full buffer is not necessary, as was done in the last review of the
project. The landscape plan shows the requisite 10-foot area but does not have the
full number of trees required (Exhibit E). As discussed in the previous approval, the view
of the golf course is desirable and there isn't a need to buffer the two uses. Staff
recommends the Commission allow the landscaping for the buffer as proposed with the
wall and fence.

Land Division

As previously mentioned, the newly created commercial pad-like lots do not meet Site
Development Standards for the lots within the C-S/P zoning district. However, this
general design was approved with the original approval and is allowed as a PUD
deviation. Other than site development standards, the commercial subdivision meets
all of the Land Division criteria.

Southerly Lot

As part of the land division, page two of the tentative plat shows a remnant parcel to
the south along North Phoenix Road. As described in the Applicant's Findings, the land
division will formally separate the southerly parcel that was physically separated from
the subject property when North Phoenix Road was extended to connect to Foothills

Page 8 of 10

Page 35



io" Fairway PUD
File no. PUD-15-011/lDS-15-012

Staff Report
May 7,2015

Road approximately 10 years ago (Exhibit H). However, this separated parcel to the
south is not otherwise part of the PUD.

Revision Compatibility with Overall PUD

Before the Planning Commission can approve a PUD Plan revision, a determination must
be made that the proposed revision is compatible with existing developed portions of
the whole PUD. Changing the number of the commercial lots, reducing the square
footage of the buildings, and revising the condition to allow medical office uses are
fairly minor changesand still consistent with the overall PUD.

FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS

Staff has reviewed the Applicant's Findings (Exhibit H) and recommends the Commission
adopt the findings as presented.

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Adopt the findings as recommended by staff and direct staff to prepare a Final Order for
approval of PUD-15-011/lDS-15-012 per the staff report dated May 7, 2015, including
Exhibits A through S.

EXHIBITS

A Conditions of Approval dated May 7, 2015
B Preliminary PUD Plan received January 29, 2015
C Tentative Plat received January 29, 2015
D Site Plan received January 29, 2015
E landscape Plan received January 29, 2015
F Utility & Grading Plans received January 29, 2015
G Original Preliminary PUD Plan received January 29, 2015
H Applicant's Findings of Fact & Conclusions of law received January 29, 2015
I Public Works Report received March 18, 2015
J Fire Department Report received March 18, 2015
K Building Department Memo received March 18, 2015
l Medford Water Commission Memo received March 19, 2015
M Parks & Recreation Department Memo received May 1,2015
N Jackson County Roads letter received March 17, 2015
o General land Use Plan Map received January 29, 2015
P Zoning Aerial Map received January 29, 2015
Q Aerial Photograph received January 29,2015
R Jackson County Assessor's Map received January 29, 2015
S letter from Oliver Scarvie received April 29, 2015

Vicinity map

Page 9 of 10

Page 36



io" Fairway PUD

File no. PUD·1S·011/LDS-1S-012

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA:

Page 10 of 10

Page 37

Staff Report
May7,2015

MAY 14,2015



EXHIBIT A

io'' Fairway PUO Revision & Commercial Subdivision
PUO-1s-011 I lOS-ls-012

Conditions of Approval
May 7,2015

All conditions of the Preliminary PUD plan approval (PUD-04-161) are still in effect,
other than those modified by this revision request.

DISCRETIONARY CONDITIONS

1. One additional freestanding sign shall be allowed for the North Phoenix Road
frontage for the commercial area consistent with the sign standards listed in
Medford land Development Code Section 10.1400 for signs in the C-S/P zoning
district. In addition, one freestanding sign is allowed per commercial lot near
each building.

2. All of the commercial buildings are allowed general office and medical office
usesonly.

CODE CONDITIONS

land Division

Prior to Final Plat approval the applicant must:

3. Receive final PUD plan approval for each phase;

4. Comply with the Public Works Department Report received March 18, 2015
(Exhibit I);

S. Comply with the Medford Fire Department Report received March 18, 2015
(Exhibit J);

6. Comply with the Medford Water Commission Report received March 19, 2015
(Exhibit l);

7. Comply with the Parks & Recreation Department Memo received May 1, 2015
(Exhibit M).

Page 1 of 2

Page 38

crrv OF MEDFORD
EXHIBIT #.......A'-"-__

File # R>D-IS-c I\/LDS- IS -oIL



EXHIBIT A

io" Fairway PUO Revision & Commercial Subdivision
PUO-15-011/ LOS-1S-012

Conditions of Approval
May 7, 2015

Planned Unit Development

8. Prior to Final Plan approval of each phase the applicant shall receive Site Plan &
Architectural Commission approval of each of the commercial buildings.

Page 2 of 2

Page 39



j~ 'Itifr
I

II,

III
Q

Ilc
0

I
~
B!II

.
111

~
I

~~
all,

IhI
U

)
I

ilfA
&

)t!1
-
-
-
-
-
~
~

1
r

u
I

::J

I
~

1
..

I•I



TENTATIVE PLAT
lO·PAJRWAY OPPJCB PARK., POD............~ .....c..I_ ~...........~_~_,.....11 ......
............ ........." e-tt~

........T .....
......... a.. .....---

,....-

__ II'h lI'_J,la,o.,.~ hi ..
:fl. st.c. ... swe. ..,.,
1'.0. _,_

"~_nulPIa... klJ 7#.....
'u ( I} nlI-'_

R81' .... -..r r, IILI ...,..... ,.-

'--llof2 0::

fgl
n
m

m
;~

L
:.>z
l\:)

co

~~--.........- ......

~
oK

I
Reduced 5cale

.n ..,,....
fnun ..
-e' "'U'4R.... ..

-------~ '----..--:Eii ........_. ~,

--~.~.........
.................

.................
......

.a <,

~-' .. ~-.; ..
'.
~.'.,.,.

f~·,.
...- '.. -"",-"

.-y,....x~- '\. . .
'\. ...............
».,," '\. -.....~

'...... .. -. ...
' .. ...::":=t"'..".,

\
\

f&$lr\
\

OREGON
JULY 9, 2001

CAEL E. NEATHAMER
56545

REGISTERED
PROFESSIONAL

LAND SURVEYOR

(WftJ.~

RenewalOate 12/31//6""'-.-...............-...--...........-...-...~

•"==="'-==" ' I'=== \
.'..-.

"P,.,..
tu wt !l0.

=~...

-
..........JIM,,_i.e-.I1..~'I.-..... za

4df .

Jr , . IU
.,wlt1l' JU7-,-,......,

~~

Vi
\

.E
('I

k,r;n
~ ~ ~

,",0
6 1 "'T1

- r ~
&1 on
'(l

-0
Q)

to
tD

~...



l.=t.

U03oU
)

-
-
~
~

8
J

:J
1

~
IIrIJIIt

!:i~
crrv

O
F

M
E

;Eil
EXHIBIT

#c...
-
~
~

FIJe#"
&

D
-

IS
-O

I

~
il

o
d

lutjlll;tt
tiC.·••u

Ih
t

:
J

IiiirJJJillffIIifIIiI,;IfIlltItI,f
IrffJrrrIrrrrrrrrfIllfirrrrrIIIiI!if

II ijiitiiiiiiiiiiiiljiiiijijijiiili!iiII
/,..

···r·····r
H
H
t
"

I'
·

·
·

·~
"

1

'-
P

age
42

=
~
~

._
L

_
-



--~~........~HIBIT 7

~ -

___ _ CA. L. ~

--

o
t--ot

~~
v)!-'

G~ ~~=

Ulil
u:l :s ;;
~~
u~

3

PROPOSED
PROFESSIONAL
OFFICE PARK

FOR:
MICHAEL T.

MAHAR

--lOll>r_AT omcc
PARK

NllATH f'tlO(HX flOAl)
W£Drnfll>. CAmClK-.-

IIAS1P1 P.u.o.
PRfUIIlIAftT

5I1E PUN

P.".Do
PH.5I'fC .....

::a
m
n
~-m
~ 5D·1-"" <CD-.... m .~• .. 1

.!..tl..

C

l-fl.-.!~
...... r...... " .

A R Y
PLAN

N

PARKING COMPUTATIONS

MI
IT E

LOT No. BUIlDING AREA PHYSICIANS MIN.REQ'D. MAX. AlLO'I'IED

LOT 1 3,273L1. 2 17 SPACES 20 SPACES

LOT 2 4.814 LI. 3 25 SPACES 29 SPACES

LOT 314 7.216..,. 7 40 SPACES 46 SPACES

LOTS 2.0nd. 1 10 SPACES

LOT6 3,516s.1. 2 18 SPACES

TOTAlS; 20.8910.1. 16 110 SPACES

COMRrrATIONFORMUlAS:
l.AINIMUM- <1.5 SPACES PER 1.000 ..,. (GROSSI BUILDING" I PER PHYSIC
MINIMUM- 5.4 SPACES PER 1,000 d . (GROSSI BUILDING .. 1 PER - . ~ . 0, m

-0
~

ELI
D. S

TOTAL PARKlING PROPOSED: 115 SPACES

LEGAL C£aCR,PTtON
3B-1W-211A TAX LOT 3:108
~e-'w-28AA TAX l.OT 202

SCALI!: t"sa..o""

P R
P. u.

\@\@\

'-.1.-'

-----

~ -----------~_O_ ......

-=- ---=roT\

® 1@1G)

~~

gJ E><'6n<G ..... ''''lOSIlAT
EllTAn;6 lOE6IOEHTlAl.CJ'an' O"l!EH ce'ot!LClf"'lEHT IC>1W ...,..........

::0 ROGUE VA LLEY CO UNTRY C l . IlB

C6 I I r"I eLlA. SIN G MAP

l.J

i:J
OJ
to
to
~
W



"'tJ
I»
to

C'D
~
~

10lh Faln,"a)"
nm<e rark

~"'II"""'"KNdI
-WW1l, J\npl

mW.~m\I,~.

..- .
A

t\ft4"·

~\

....ExHiBIT 10

1. ~-==':.-=:-..::-."..a....-..
;UPLAIIJ1NO Il£Y HDtU, S; c....» m --@ .........--........ I .......... :z --:z ---...-.............- z n ........, ..

(j) .......................w .............,...,.............-
~

l\:)
m..............••......H" CO m
~--- - Ll0 r.,) <c:::»m --. m\J t.n

:-I 0 .. ~

PLANTMA1ERSAL AND..STAUAnDN

\. ......-..... ...M...-.. _ ... IU __I.... .............---... ..............................~.-.--- ..
--. MttllM --.. ...
................._ --. w..

"' ..._ r __
----_ --- - - ......____~ --"'ll ..

----. --..-._--- -
1-.1...... _ --"".. ..--...-.._ --. ......... -.- - ...• __ cw~ ......

PLAHf MAT£RIA1. WARIlAHTY

'- "" _1 _ ...............__........,.., ...--..... ...."..-_ -_.
~_~ o.-.-....--..._ .-.-.
..._ ....-.. ........_ .. a.........

-.... --~----z. ...~ __ -... ~
____ "'- ,..~ -w ......-~ .-.......-......._..0-.-.....--.

1. ~____._.__. ._1" __...
__._."'-.-.... -w ..-.-.-...-..... 41-.. _

... 1.-,........... -... ..-.........'-............
=~,."...,--..c..,.'J.,......""""'. ..

L ~ _ ""--. ...- -.. - - ...................w_ .-. ....
.......- .- - ........ ,. o. r .. _ __
~ __ f"'~ ..1C"_............_....,. r~ _--._........
-...,............._- .....

T

t,·_---._-"--'"
F.l

D

......c.- ....,..

PRElI"'NAR"LAI!~NOf"ES

'L, '* ...........~..Qrfl............. II ...........-----. ...--.
t. Ik lr rI .....a. ..............__ _-
.. n- ..- ....-.., ..-_ ,.....,.e-.... ~................._..~...-..~-'" ........ __'- f ~ ..... ....

--~ --.
..... ,..'- _~lU....""'-t'.U._.....

......_p _ ..--... .,ao ...._ &-.,...........-- _ -
L=~~s.:::== ~-~~~

~.- ...-.-..

~a, ~,.. .....
'\:J ,.1

@

SY

.........
"""'-h..rV--\'

6

awn'"u,1....

~...........~~u.-"I_

....~ \W*re.o.r- ' ....

................. lllt-.r I~PSIr""'" ....
~ ..'IWI,..... r....AMlIConA: ....
~~ ....-a.rr ...
tan,.lI ......... R1f ......, fftoaa-coc 'a&e-na................. o-&.~Oaig..-r ' ....
~D*"tl 0--. J ....

~ ...... """' ..... t ~" ' ...
•~~.QIIi a.a..o.~ ' ....•.,...,...~'1.,.; ,................ s....L.an..... .......,~ '.....
~ .. .,........ o-rt........ar- ' ....
............~ o..aa-~ 2 ....
........~ o--1~ar.. ,_......__.... _..............
~____ S---~ ' •--_ ......- .....
""-"~ ~~ 311"tt..f/I\n4........ .......~ "tt.
~hb"""'" ........-.,-.
~..,...,... y ~ ' ..
~ ...
ar-'RIlI~ RI4~taoPIII lMtr~

....~"-' o-t_Y4lW' 1 pi.

.....tuIIIrII.,....AiIIIlr' .... f .....~ 1_
tf*alIII.,......".e::.,...,' ~r;..,....... J.,&.
....... 1lIMJI 0Nt\'&unn 3_
"'-"'- p&-..L 'UeoMI ......~ ''''

"'"~-Of.
D<RaJR
D<RKl

""'''''''""'100
aJRSlo

"""on.
.....c.ao...,....
U("SrI:
moP....
""'PL................
POl .....

PC"'"...........
-"'"......"""PRU.,.-........
"""ROS ...........................,
""DAY

"1'\.1

...
r ...
,rhl.d'\.
r ...
)r ""' .....,.........
r_.....,.....

Pluntlng 1'llIn -10th Fulrwu}' Office l'Ufk

------- -----.-----------_--- .".. ¢t
1

.,.s.£
10 (1""

¢1

~----_.....
..-.00'_
ow.".................. ..,.,.........-............ ,...
'_Do

--------_ "......

1UgrdI ,-__,

......--

!!l"~

PLANT SCHEDULE
"'" woo'"
!!!!
ACl OIl

callAn.
oDU,.,............"'"
...00

"""sn"1lf
"'iP'

"*'

-



~

'5N

I~~

,....,
e:;,
-Joo
(,3'1

-f. '5IU.

jU~j
_..I.

,,,,,

...., .
oJO/IIKrDf-OJ'

F'lLE; /I4SlWP.OAC

moo-
lAY flAT. NO
#4ICI-t POINrSI

6~ --_.
... /Dl UNE:
SCE Snffr '0. (7)R STI?CU
sa SHffT 6. fDII ""I£R

am
"U
:-i

_~ .... IGat. ....

..... V' ••

I

_-..........--..
arror~-

TIlE IOlh FAJRWAY
.""

6. • _ _

r "'==zJ'"

......,'00 1..F' Of' S" PflIVArr
PK' S.D. 0 I .CX

5~ •

(PRNATr)

PLAN

/ -

LlLJ
+J~ ··t

,,

-T-
r I.

t---.~- ... I

I
;

PROFILE. I
,(PlltVA TC),

bod -"

I
I

I, '\1,,1 Li"br-S--PkivATr '
'AC SO: 0 ;>4JC jas Lor. or. 8' 1 n: l

--:SO.'-S~';!t.---

'-
.........

<,

COIIST 8" CL. ~
,l:Jt IIIATfF/UIIC

\

r_

1+26 .8I!. 10'Rr
"~91.l'. 10' RT.
9(1' BCND (W). S" C v. (W)
wi rHRlIST BlOCK

NfIf H/C _. rw.
P£11 CITY 0; UC'DFDRfJ
SID. DRlOG. NO. 99-~.

i!:
~
<=

o

l::l
~
'l:

~
a:

r~ ~

~
,,.. w

(J),
in
b
t-'

..
~ ~- .;
... 0,

,,.. . l ::t 4 ~

"·'~-fi · C~--:2/::::~_=F14~
~ (") , , I

r..: l - I ,.-~~.._ . ~·;--i- · · ; ·

~~
' :!::
mc
~

""C
OJ
to
C1)

~
V1



,I
~!I,.,

I

~

.,•

_
.....

r
•

-
;

-
.
-
-

-
-,,

.
!

-
-

I

~
~~'r.-'Jd"""";~l"7r-~l

~
-
"
-
i

·~
ii~

8
a
~

1
~
l

!1

-r
-

..
,

-
~

-----II,

r
'

L
_

,
,

I
•

---+----

,
l

~
-

,,III

-
T

P
ag

e
46

i]

III

-
--..

<
,--..~j.

<
,



..-r,. ...

JOO NO. 04-OJ'
FIl£; atselW'.OIOC

z -
~

l\:) oCOm
~ "-' -c::;)<
" c::Tim
:-f 0

-- ---.....,.
...... "' 0CftlI ... _ .....

....-------.

80 tr. OF ". PRtvAfll··'\ ---. -
PK" SO. #I I.M $S. ca

NV-.!1J. ,
ExIST. PRIVATE 8'

RaNNING WALL SIT 5.5. TO B~ ROlOVlll

~" 1

------

,--- -
s.o. CO 'N.• "'" J

ROIOVE OUST
5.5. Il .H

PLAN-<:oMMERCIAL UTILITYPLAN

fWlKlNG LOT UCHr.
n1' secIII/CH.

_/'" F'lAN
NORTH PHOENIX ROAD

,~ L.F. OF 8"
pRtvArr PK" SO .
t ___

-n

::tJ
C

(")

~o . - .
-n
;:
rB

I~ -'O<UD

rp .an I:> AD. IJ I ~~ ...._

'"C
OJ
to
(I)

.J:::

......



'..
\

\
•

\
I

,
I

\
J

,
•

P
ag

e
48

I.

.
.
.
.
-
.
.
~
I
I

(
0

1
W

J./S
3)$}

_
_

N
O

ta
3

S
S
~

L
D

S
-IS

-O
I2

...

~
>

ou
,

''''.j'O
...:.te

{.+ -
.•'

'.'
·,.+"Q-

......



/
',.

I
-

I

I

~
,-

I
i~~I

,-
-

,

..l!!
-

jl
•t

~I
;~

I!
1111I·

I
!i'

.!
(1

•
!

~"
,
I

II
:1

1I II
.·

I
I!

O.
~

i
!I

~ifl!3l i: 1,tlfIII
in

lin
litI

,
"

I..,
I

I

/_'
~

•
-I.

50.5,
Page

11

"
~

l~,-,-
,

_
:'I.

P
age

49



~ ~...
IV
10...
::;

=:::l

S; ~-::u
:z~m
Zl\:)n

t5 to !!!
O~<
m -- m\) t.r.

:-1 10

i-.
PLANHI/lG DEPT

RECEIVED

AUG 16200

EXHIBIT 5

~ c-P~

-ocnuo_.....................

'! i ~._~

e---

(AAP><IC ecAI.!

....... ,1_."",

._ .. eM"........-
~"U'I_.-.----... IQII,...._..-----

tU:Ld =L1 i _ j

,,,,,'

'-'_ ..
\he N.E.. "" 0' 6ecucn 28 ,2aA 4AA :

..T~g,'~~,=: llIM.

J·TC::~~~ ~;r

l<Z>lh FAIRUJA'l' OFFICE FARK

PI-IA&E& 2, 3 ~ 4 OF IlZllh FAIRWAY &U6DIVI&ION
~l.IMINARY RJD PLAN

$IGN TTP'ICAL
,..,.,., ~,

.--
R"PCf e.. 'pi =t..~

LG:XFJ-=-
.

----- -flnO e\'\i y..

e"m:::""

o

~

(")

:<!
o

&

j$n:i!i~~
. --=.=.-

,
V\
l
f'l

~
:=....-..",.. ..~~.......::..~

,.....~.
-::..- ------.--. ..,........." ... . -= - ...-...-

(I) ,.....~~:u: - .........

.--:~:------------------~~;o.;;;-iA:;"~7.='C-;;::;C;;;-------------
{

"OJ
lC
(1)

U1
o

")



(

BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION

FOR THE CITY OF MEDFORD

JACKSON COUNTY, OREGON

RECEIVED

JAN 292015

PLANNING DEPT.

IN THE MATTER OF AN )
APPLICATION TO AMEND THE 10 th

)

FAIRWAY PLANNED UNIT )
DEVELOPMENT PLAN (FILE NO. PUD- )
04-161) AND TO AUTHORIZE A NEW )
TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION PLAT FOR )
PHASE 2 (PREVIOUSLY PHASES 2, 3 )
AND 4). THE AFFECTED PORTION OF )
THE PUD IS SITED ON THE EASTERN )
2.91 ACRES OF THE PUD WHICH IS )
ZONED C-S/P ON THE EAST 1.70 )
ACRES AND SFR-4 ON THE WEST 1.21 )
ACRES. THE PROJECT IS SITUATED )
SOUTH OF NORTH PHOENIX ROAD )
BETWEEN ITS TWO INTERSECTIONS )
WITH URANO LANE TO THE SOUTH )
AND HILLCREST ROAD TO THE )
NORTH IN THE CITY OF MEDFORD, )
OREGON. )

Applicant: Michael T. Mahar
Agent: CSA Planning, Ltd.

PROPOSED FINDINGS AND
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

Applicant's Exhibit 1

NATURE AND SCOPE OF APPLICATION

On September 9,2004, the City of Medford Planning Commission approved a planned unit
development and subdivision for the 10lh Fairway project, Planning File No. PUD-04-161.
The PUD is a mixed use project with residential units on the western portion of the project
and office development on the eastern portion of the project. Phase 1 was the single family
residential component of the project. It has obtained final plat and two of the lots have
recently constructed dwellings on them. On May 10, 2005, the City of Medford approved a
3-lot partition to create lots for the construction of the three office sites. The Applicant
completed much of the underground work and rough grading on the site, but did not obtain
final plat approval for that partition. The final plat approval subsequently expired.

This amendment seeks a different lot configuration for the commercial component of the
project. The previously approved tentative partition plat had three lots and would have
required relatively large and somewhat complicated access easements and joint maintenance
agreements. The Applicant now seeks approval of a tentative subdivision plat to create four
smaller lots that only contain the buildings and the immediately surrounding landscaping and

CITY OF MEDFORD
=...==---------------------EX-H-IBI-T #~

L8II File#~~·\~-O'F)..
PageS1 -~·l o-:



Findings of Fact and C"'nclusions of Law r
Application for Revision of appC PUC and new Tentative Subdivision Plat "-
Michael T. Mahar. Applicant

sidewalks, with the remainder becoming a large common area lot, that will be jointly owned
by the building owners, which will contain all the parking and circulation for the office
buildings and related improvements such as landscaping.

Applicant also requests that Condition #2 of the original PUD be amended. This condition
restricted use of the office buildings to General Office uses. The original PUD layout
contemplated total building square footage up to 30,850 square feet. However, the PUD
layout for the project did not include adequate parking for medical office uses which require
substantially more parking than general office uses. The PUD layout submitted as part of
this application has substantially smaller buildings with approximately 20,900 square feet of
building and includes additional parking that would support medical office uses. Applicant
requests that the condition be amended to require that SPAC verify that adequate parking
exists for the entire site as each individual building is reviewed by SPAC; this amendment
will ensure that if some or all of the buildings to be used for medical office the parking
capacity for the site will not be exceeded.

II

EVIDENCE SUBMITTED WITH APPLICATION

Applicants herewith submit the following evidence with their applications for Preliminary
PUD Plan:

Exhibit 1. The proposed Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law (this document)
demonstrating how the modified Preliminary PUD Plan and Land Division
applications comply with the applicable substantive criteria of the MLDC

Exhibit 2. Assessor's plat maps T37S-Rl W-Section28A and T37S-Rl W-Section28AA
which depicts the subject properties

Exhibit 3. Zoning Districts on Aerial Map

Exhibit 4. City of Medford General Land Use Plan (GLUP) Map

Exhibit 5. Currently approved PUD 04-161 Site Plan

Exhibit 6. Aerial Map from 2012 showing improvements to date.

Exhibit 7. Revised Preliminary PUD Site Plan (Revisions Delimited Phase 2)

Exhibit 8. Revised Tentative Plat (Revisions Delimited Phase 2)

Exhibit 9. Revised Preliminary PUD Plan

Exhibit 10. Revised Landscape Plan (Revisions Delimited Phase 2)

Exhibit 11. Grading and Storm Detention Map

Exhibit 12. Final Order Approving PUD 04-161

Exhibit 13. Completed Preliminary PUD and Tentative Subdivision Plan application forms
and powers of attorney from the record owner of the property

Page 2 of20

Page 52



Findings of Fact and C"nclusions of Law ( -
Application for Revisionof appr PUD and newTentative Subdivision Plat
MichaelT. Mahar: Applicant

III

RELEVANT SUBSTANTIVE APPROVAL CRITERIA

The criteria under which the applications for Preliminary PUD Plan must be approved are in
Article II of the Medford Land Development Code (MLDC). The criteria for the land use
applications are recited verbatim below and again in Section V where each is followed by the
conclusions of law:

City of Medford Approval Criteria

A. PLANNED UNITDEVELOPMENT
10.245Revision or Terminal/on of a PUD

A. RevisIon of a Preliminary or FinalPUD Plan: The expansion or modification of a PUD approved under
earlierPUDordinances ofthe City or the revision of a Preliminary or FinalPUDPlanshall followthe
same procedures required for initial approval of a Preliminary PUDPlan in this Section, provided:

1. Applicant for Revision; FilingMaterials; Procedures: An application to revisean approved PUD
Planshall be on formssupplied by the City.The application form shall bear the signature of the
owner(s) who controla majority interestin morethan fiftypercent(50%) of the vacantland covered
by the approved PUDand who are also the owner(s) of land and improvements withinthe PUD
whichconstitute more than fifty percent(50%) of the totalassessed valueof vacantportion of the
PUD. For changes deemed by the Planning Directorto be minorbut not de minimis, the Planning
Directorshall exercise appropriate discretion underSection 10.235(B) to limit or waive thesubmittal
of filingmaterials deemed to be excessive, repetitive or unnecessary based uponthe scope and
natureof the proposed PUDrevisions. PUD revisions shall followthe sameprocedures usedfor
initial approval of a Preliminary PUDPlan.

2. Consolidated Procedure: At the discretion of the Planning Director, revisions to an approved PUD
Plan maybe consolidated into a single procedure, the effectof whichwill be the approval of botha
Preliminary PUDPlanandFinal PUDPlanby the Planning Commission.

3. Burden of Proof;Criteriafor Revisions: The burden of proofand supporting findings of fact and
conclusions of law for the criteria in Subsections 10.235(0) or 10.240(G), as applicable, shall be
strictlylimited to the specific natureandmagnitude of the proposed revision. However, it is further
provided that thedesignanddevelopment aspects of the whole PUD may be relied uponIn
reaching findings of factand conclusions of lawfor the criterion at Subsection 10.235(D)(5). It is
furtherprovided that before the Planning Commission can approve a PUDPlan revision, it must
determine that the proposed revision is compatible with existing developed portions of thewhole
PUD.

10.235 Preliminary PUCPlan - Application Procedures.

C. Approval Criteria for Preliminary PUDPlan: The Planning Commission shall approve a Preliminary
PUDif it concludes that compliance existswith eachof the follOWing criteria:

1. The proposed PUD
a. preserves an important natural feature of the land, or
b. includes a mixture of residential andcommercial landuses,or
c. includes a mixture of housing types in residential areas, or
d. includes open space, common areas, or otherelements intended for common ownership, or
e. is otherwise required by the Medford Land Development Code.

2. The proposed PUDcomplies with the applicable requirements of this Code, or
a. the proposed modified applications of the Code are related specifically to the implementation

of the rationale for the PUDas described in Section 10.235(8)(3)(a), and
b. the proposed modifications enhance the development as a whole resulting in a morecreative

anddesirable project, and
c. the proposed modifications to the limitations, restrictions, and design standards of this Code

will not materially impair the function, safety, or efficiency of the circulations system or the
development as a whole.

Page3 or 20

Page 53



Findings of Fact and r-~nclusionsof Law r
Application for Revision of app( PUDand newTentative Subdivision Plat \.
MichaelT. Mahar: Applicant

3. The property is not sUbject to any of the following measures or If subject thereto the PUO can be
approved under the standards and criteria thereunder:
a. Moratorium on Construction or Land Development pursuant to ORS 197.505 through 197.540,

as amended.
b. Public Facilities Strategy pursuant to ORS 197.768 as amended.
c. LImited Service Area adopted as part of the Medford Comprehensive Plan.

4. The location. size, shape and character of all common elements in the PUD are appropriate for
their Intended use and function.

5. If the Preliminary PUO Plan Includes uses not allowed in the underlying zone pursuant to
Subsection 10.230(0)(7)(c), the applicant shall alternatively demonstrate that either: 1) demands
for the Category "N public facUities listed below are equivalent or less than for one or more
permitted use listed for the underlying zone, or 2) the property can be supplied by the time of
development with the following Category "A" public facilities which can be supplied In sufficient
condition and capacity to support development of the proposed use:

a. Public sanitary sewerage collection and treatment facilities.
b. Public domestic water distribution and treatment facilities
c. Storm drainage facilities.
d. Public streets.

Determination of compliance with this criterion shall be based on standards of pUblic facility
adequacy as set forth in this Code and in goals and policies of the comprehensive plan which by
their language and context function as approval criteria for comprehensive plan amendments, zone
changes or new development. In Instances where the Planning Commission determines that there
is insufficient public facility capacity to support the development of a particular use, nothing in this
criterion shall prevent the approval of early phases of a phased PUO which can be supplied with
adequate public facilities.

6. If the Preliminary PUD Plan includes uses proposed under Subsection 10.230(0)(7)(c). approval of
the PUO shall also be subject to compliance with the conditional use permit criteria in Section
10.248.

7. If approval of the PUO application Includes the division of land or the approval of other concurrent
development permit applications as authorized in Subsection 10.230(C), approval of the PUO shall
also be subject to compliance with the substantive approval crileria in Article II for each of the
additional development applications.

B. LAND DIVISION - TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION PLAT
10.270 Land Division Criteria.

The approving authority (Planning Commission) shall not approve any tentative plat unless il first finds lhal. the
proposed land division together with the provisions for its design and improvement:

(1) Is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, any other applicable specific plans therelo, and all applicable
design standards set forth in Article IV and V;

(2) Will not prevent development of the remainder of the property under the same ownership, if any. or of
adjoining land or of access thereto. in accordance with this chapter;

(3) Bears a name that has been approved by the approving authority and does not use a word which is the
same as, similar to, or pronounced the same as a word in the name of any other subdivision in the City of
Medford; except for the words "town", "city". "place". "court", "addition", or similar words; unless the land
platted is contiguous to and platted by the same applicant that platted the land division bearing that name; or
unless the applicant files and records the consent of the party who platted the land division bearing that
name and the block numbers continue those of the plat of the same name last filed;

(4) Includes the creation of streets, that such streets are laid out to conform. within the limits of the City of
Medford and its Urban Growth Boundary, to the plats of land divisions already approved for adjoining
property unless the approving authority determines it is in the public interest to modify the street pattern;

(5) Has streets that are proposed to be held for private use, that they are distinguished from the public street on
the tentative plat, and reservations or restrictions relating to the private streets are set forth;

(6) Will not cause an unmitigated land use conflict between the land division and adjoining agricullurallands
within the EFU (Exclusive Farm Use) zoning district.

Page4 of 20

Page 54



Findings of Fact and C'1nclusions of Law C
Application for Revision of app( PUCandnewTentative Subdivision Plat
Michael T. Mahar: Applicant

v

FINDINGS OF FACT

The following facts are established and found to be true with respect to this matter:

1. Subject Property Ownership and Details: According to the records of the Jackson
County Assessor and Medford Planning Department, the subject property that contains the
area of requested revisions, identified in previous approval as Phases 2, 3 and 4 of the
PUD (now all are part of Phase 2) and tentative subdivision plan is T37S-RI W
Section28A Tax Lot 3306 and T37S-RI W-Section28AA Tax Lot 202. The properties are
owned in fee simple by Michael T. Mahar. The subject properties are approximately 3.74
acres In area.

2. Property Location: The property is located on the south side of North Phoenix Road, in
the between its intersections with Urano Lane to the south and Hillcrest Road to the north.
The property is within the corporate limits of the City and its urban growth boundary
(UGB). The location of the subject property in relation to the present corporate limits of
the City and to other land in the surrounding area is depicted on Exhibit 6.

3. Comprehensive Plan and Zoning: Tax Lot 3306 is zoned SFR-4 and is designated
Urban Residential on the Medford General Land Use Map (GLUP). Tax Lot 202 is zoned
C-S/P and designated Service Commercial on the GLUP. Existing zoning is consistent
with the GLUP.

4. Surrounding Land Uses: Land uses that presently surround the property are:

A. North: Lands across North Phoenix Road to the north east contain the Hillcrest
Office Park. This office park has been building out over the last five years and has
only a couple of remaining pads available for development. Lands to the northwest
across North Phoenix Road are vacant and are owned by Cogswell Limited
Partnership.

B. South: Land adjacent and to the south of the subject property is currently developed
as the lOth Fairway of the Rogue Valley Country Club golf course.

C. East: Land to the east on the opposite side of North Phoenix Road is currently
developed with single-family dwellings on individual lots that range in size from a
third to half acre with houses constructed primarily in the 1970's and 1980's

D. West: Lands adjacent and to the west of the subject property are zoned SFR-4 and
developed with single-family dwellings on individual lots. lmmediately to the west
of the properties affected by the PUD amendments is the entry drive for the PUD and
the residential portion of the 10lh Fairway PUD project. This project has nine
residential lots platted, three of which have been developed. Further to the west, are
residential properties around the Rogue Valley Country Club golf course that are a
quarter to a third acre in size.

Page5 of 20

Page 55



Findings of Fact and C'"lnclusions of Law C
Application for Revision of app( . PUD andnewTentativeSubdivision Plat
MIchael T. Mahar; Applicant

5. PUD Ownership and Structural Development Summary

Table 1

PUC Ownership by Taxlot
Sources: JacksonCountyAssessor; CSA Planning, ltd.

37-1W-2BA-3309" 3000 Signature Court DavidandSandraShinn .61 2013 Single FamilyDwelling

37-1W-2BA-3310· 3008 Signature Court Theresa Smith .37 VACANT 597,280

37-1W-2BA-3311" 3016 Signature Court RobertSevcik .39 VACANT $97,280

37-1 W-2BA-3312 3024 Signature Court MichaelT. Mahar, .34 VACANT 5198,280Re Breeze
37-1W-2BA-3313 3032 Signature Court Awesome Auto LLC .34 VACANT 5198,280

37-1W-28A-3314 3040 Signature Court MichaelT Mahar .33 VACANT $196.430

37-1W-2BA·3315 3048 Signature Court MichaelandMelinda .36 2009 Single FamilyDwellingFowler

37-1W-28A·3316 3056 Signature Court John andNancyDay .27 VACANT- with 558,590PrivateLandsca ing

37-1W-28A-3317 3064 Signature Court John and NancyDay .43 2007 Single Family Dwelling

37-1W-28A·3308 N/A 10thFairway Estates HOA .47 VACANT-Common $10Area Landscaping

VACANT- Common
37-1W-28A-3305 N/A 10'h Fairway EstatesHOA .76 Area. PrivateStreet $10

andAccessway

37-1W-28A-3307 N/A Michael T. Mahar .36 VACANT· Project
510Drivewa and Ent

37-1W·28A·3306 N/A MichaelT. Mahar 1.21 VACANT 564,480

37-1W-28AA·202°· N/A MichaelT. Mahar 1.70 VACANT $292.550

Total VACANT Acres 6.54 51 ,203,170

Parcels wI Structural 1.40Development

TOTALPUDACREAGE·· 7.94

• Tax Lars 3309,33/0. 3311 size increasedsince the originalapplication due to the vacation0/Foothill Road.

•• Tax Lot 202 contains2.53 acres a/which .83 1- acres are not included within the PUDboundary. This acreage will
become a separateresidualparcelper this application.

Table 2

Vacant PUC Ownership Totals and Percentages
Sources: Jackson CountyAssessor; CSA Planning. ltd.

Total MaharAcres 3.94 60.2% $751 ,750 62.5%

Total10 Fairway 1.23 18.8% $20Estates HOA
Vacantother PUD 1.37 21.0% 5451,430 37,5%owners

Page 56
Page6 of 20



Findings of Fact and r- "'n c lu s io n s of Lavv
Application for Revision of appr' PUD and new Tentativ e Subdivis:on Pial
Michael T. Mahar: Applicant

According to the assessor's records there are approximately 7.94 total privately held
acres in the PUD. Approximately lAO of those acres are parcels with structural
development. Approximately 6.54 acres are completely vacant. Approximately 1.23
acres are vacant from a structural standpoint, but contain landscaping or access and
circulation improvements. Even if the parcels that contain landscaping and access are
considered vacant under the ordinance, Applicant Michael Mahar owns 60.3% percent of
the vacant acreage in the PUD, and owns land and improvements that constitute 62.5
percent of the total assessed value of land and improvements on the vacant land.

6. Topography: The property has an average slope of roughly 17 percent (Exhibit 6).
However, the westerly portion ofthe property adjacent to North Phoenix Road has steeper
slopes from North Phoenix Road's embankment.

7. Floodplain, Wetlands, Drainage: There is no 1OO-year mapped floodplain on the
property nor are there any wetlands on the property. Drainage was designed at the time
the preliminary grading plan work was done for the site.

8. Description of the Planned Unit Development (PUD):

A. Prior Planning Approvals:

a. A comprehensive plan map amendment was approved by the City of Medford in
in 2002 through Ordinance No. 2002-183 that created the GLUP Map
configuration depicted in Exhibit 4.

b. In 2003, the zoning map was amended to make it consistent with the GLUP Map
amendments approved through Ordinance No. 2002-183.

c. On September 9,2004, the City of Medford Planning Commission approved the
PUD that is the subject of this amendment application, Planning File No. PUD
04-161.

d. On May 10, 2005, the Planning Commission approved Planning File No. LDP-05
43 which approved a three-lot partition for the creation of three lots in the office
component of the project - one for each approved office building. This partition
never obtained final plat and has expired.

e. The final PUD plan for Phases 1-4 was approved by the Planning Commission on
October 27,2005. By and through approval of this proposed amendment to the
Preliminary PUD Plan, a new Final PUD plan will need to be approved consistent
with the revised Preliminary PUD plan sought in the subject application.

B. pun Status- Platting and Build-out:

Table 3

Build-out Summary
Source: CSA Planning. LId.

____ 0 - _ _ _

Phase 1
Lois were platted and final PUD plan is approved: dwellings have been
constructed on some of the 1015.

Page 57
Page 7 of 20



Findings of Fact and p...nclusions of law
Application for Revision of app\.. PUCand newTentative Subdivision Plat
Michael T. Mahar. Applicant -

- - . - -

c

Phase 2

Phase 3

Phase 4

Final PUDPlan approved, land division expired. Vacantand affected by
the proposed amendments.

Final PUDPlan approved, land division expired. Vacantand affected by
the proposed amendments.

Final PUD Planapproved, land division expired. Vacantand affected by
the proposed amendments.

Note: under thisapplication. Phases2 through4 will be combinedinto a single Phase2.

C. Approved Private Street: The City approved Signature Court during the prior
approvals. This private street has now been platted and it exists to serve the
residential component of the project.

D. Approved Sidewalks, Walksways and Accessways: The sidewalks and accessway
that serves the residential component of the project have all been constructed and
currently exist to serve the project. Sidewalks and walkways within the office
commercial component of the project will meet applicable Site Plan and Architectural
Review standards, except where specific code modifications have been approved to
allow an alternative design.

E. Approved pun Code Modifications: In 2004 when the PUD was approved, the
MLDC referred to code modifications as "deviations". The criteria for approval of
the same under the current code is ostensibly the same and the Planning Commission
can and should treat the previously approved "deviations" to be approved
"modifications" under the current code. Consistent with this reasoning, the original
PUD application approved the following code modifications as reported in below
Table 4:

Table 4

Approved Code Modifications
Source: CSAPlanning Ltd.

Enlry; The private street has been constructed, including
Private Street the entry upon North PhoenixRoad. It isa

privately owned facility that may differ In some
ways with the requirements for standard city
streets ofeither a minor residential or
commerciallindustrialtype. The improvements
shown on the Aerial Photo inExhibit6.

All lots are affected 10.230(0)(6)
by the entry design,

Residential Lots 1-9
are affected by the
rest of the private
street already
constructed

10.429-10.431
10.500

Page 58
PageBof 20



Findings of Fact and r-.,nclusions of Law ( -
Application for Revision of app . PUCandnewTentative Subdivision Plat
MichaelT. Mahar: Applicant

Cul-de-sac The private street isacul-de-sac that at473 feet Residential Lots1-9 10.230(0)(5) - 10.450(2)(A)
islonger than the 450 foot length which is 10.230(0)(6)
otherwise permitted and has atum-around which
contains acircularplanter atitscenter. This
component isbuilt as approved and final plathas
beenobtained.

Signs Atthe project entry, applicant sought to install two Entry 10.230(0)(4) 10.1200(3)
project identificationsigns, one tomark the
residential area and one for the offices.
Residential PUD signs are required tobe
mounted on the ground. Modification was
allowed so Applicant was allowed tomount them
to the sound wall return for the residential sign
and have the residential sign externally
illuminated. Signs have been installed.

OfficeUseon Professional offices are not permitted inthe SFR· 10-11 10.230(0)(7)(c) 10.300
SFR-4 Zoned 4zone.Planning Commission approved 10.314
Land modification allowing the use of1.25 acres ofthe

site which iszoned SFR-4 for oneofthree
professional office buildings and itsassociated
parking.

Approved Uses Not Othenvise Permitted: The PUO ordinance - MLDC
10.230(0)(7)(c) - permits uses that are not otherwise permitted in an underlying
zone to occupy up to 20 percent of a PUO. In this instance, the subject property is
split zoned SFR-4 and C-SIP as shown in Exhibit 3, Zoning on Aerial Map. As part
of the previous PUD approval, applicant proposed to use 1.57 acres which are zoned
SFR-4 for professional offices and the portion of the private road which is within the
professional offices area and to the southwest of the proposed building. The private
road portion of this I.57-acre area is permitted in both the SFR-4 and C-SIP zones.
However, the portion of Tax Lot 3306 to be occupied by a professional office is a use
that, but for the PUD, is not permitted in the SFR-4 zone. This portion of the
property is approximately 1.21 acres and comprises less than 20 percent of the total
7.57-acre property approved as a PUD in 2004. This application proposes to retain
this modification without revision. The portion of Tax Lot 3306 and total acreage to
be used for professional offices remains as approved.

G. Landscaping; Landscape Maintenance: The Preliminary Landscaping Plan is
shown in Exhibit 10 and covers the commercial development, common areas,
landscaping along North Phoenix Road and landscaping along lOth Fairway Court .
Landscaping along the io" fairway golf hole is in addition to landscaping already
provided by RVCC. The applicant is required and will supply the Association
documents needed to demonstrate how the Association(s) will maintain the common
elements. Exhibit 10 also shows planting details for trees and shrubs and a separate

Page 59
Page 9 of 20



.Findings of Fact and ~""nclusions of Law
Application for Revision of app , PUCand newTentative Subdivision Plat
MichaelT. Mahar: Applicant

sheet (also part ofExhibit 10) shows the specified plant materials and an alternate
choice for each. Landscaping within the boundaries of the nine residential lots will
be left wholly to the taste and discretion of the future owners.

H. Approved Common Elements: In addition to the dwellings and office buildings that
will be privately held, the project has several common elements. There will be two
owner associations. There is an existing association for the residential owners and an
additional one will be created for the other for the office owners.' As yet
undetermined is whether there will be single association formed for each office
building? The below Table 2 shows the various common elements and the
responsibilities for ongoing upkeep and maintenance.

Table 4

Common Elements
Source: CSAPlanning. Ltd.

Private Street Entryway

Perimeter Landscaping '

Exterior Pole Lighting

Private Street
(Residential),

Accessway

Residential Monument Sign

Private StreeVParking
Access
(Offices)

Off-street Parking Areas

This element includes the ent ryway connecting to North
Phoenix Road and includes the landscape medians.
sidewalklwalkways, pole lighting and adjacent
landscaping.

The landscaping along the North Phoenix Road frontage
of the project and landscaping which adjoins the 10th golf
hole fairway within the office area. Th is element also
includes many of the walkways within the office area that
are not associated with individual build ings .

Special pole lights authorized by Medford

This element includes the 28-fool wide paved section; the
adjoining sidewalk; stamped concrete crosswalk;
relaining wall ; landscaping; parkstrip and street trees ; and
the planter in the center of the cul-de-sac turnaround.

The planned accessway, its hard surface, lighting and
landscaping.

Wall ·mounted sign that identifies residential area .

This element includes the 28-foot wide paved sect ion; the
adjoining sidewalk: park strip landscaping and street
trees .

This element includes the paved off-street parking areas,

Residential
and
Offices

Residential
and
Offices

Residential
and Offices

Residential

Residential

Res idential

Offices

Offices

I There may also be a separate association(s) for each building if the interior spaces of an office are to be owned
as condominiums pursuant to ORS Chapter 100 (the Oregon Condominium Law).
2 Each of the subdivision lots is entitled to operate independently but will be made subject to an association that
governs the two principle parts of the PUD: I) the residentialpart, and 2) the officepark part.

Page 60
Page 10of 20



Findings of Fact and ~ t')nclusions of Law C
Application for Revision of app PUC and new Tentative Subdivision Plat
Michael T. Mahar: Applicant

(Offices)

Office Monument Signs

Garbage Receptacles

including the internal landscaping. Also included are the
concrete curbs. which define the asphalt parking areas.
This element also includes the bicycle parking areas.

Entry monument sign that identifies office area. Individual
business signs located in common area along North Offices
Phoenix Road frontage.

Screened dumpsters Offices

I. Proposed pun Revisions:
The applicant is seeking two substantive revisions. Both revisions concern only the
office component of the PUD (and related request for a new tentative subdivision
plat).

i. Revised Discretionary Condition #2: The original discretionary Condition #2
required a restrictive covenant be recorded that limited the use of the office
buildings to "general office uses". This condition functioned to disallow the use
of these office buildings for medical or dental office tenants. Dental and Medical
office tenants have substantially higher parking requirements than those for
general office and the building sizes originally proposed would not have had
adequate parking for medical office uses.

Applicant is proposing substantially smaller buildings than previously approved
and is including additional parking spaces to allow for the medical office uses.
Consequently, the Applicant is requesting this condition be amended. The
condition language requested would require the total parking for the site to be
calculated with each SPAC application, and that any restriction to general office
is to be evaluated and imposed by SPAC if and only if the SPAC finds that there
is inadequate parking provided for medical office uses for the building(s) under
consideration at that time.

Proposed off-street parking is shown on the Exhibit 7 PUD plans. The parking
spaces are a typical ninety-degree configuration and each space is 9 feet wide by
20 feet deep, although compact parking may be provided when the Final PUD
Plan is submitted. Parking for disabled persons is provided in accordance with
the MLDC and requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). The
commercial parking facilities are interconnected and are shared as common area
for the entire office component of the project and will jointly serve all three office
buildings. The parking areas will be surfaced with asphaltic concrete and striped
to delineate the individual spaces. There will be 6-inch concrete curbing around
the perimeter of all asphalt areas, including the medians within the entry drive.
The parking areas serve the three office buildings. The method to care for the
parking areas are to be covered in the revised Association documents that will be
furnished with the final PUD plan review. In addition to landscaping within the
parking areas, there is extensive perimeter landscaping, especially along the south

Page 11 of 20

Page 61



Findings of Fact and ~ ")nclusions of Law
'Application for Revisionof app : PUCand newTentative Subdivision Plat
MichaelT. Mahar: Applicant

boundary of the property which fronts on the fairway of the 10th RVCC golf hole
to provide screening from errant golf balls. Landscaping along the 10tl1 fairway
golf hole is in addition to landscaping already installed by RVCC. See, Exhibit
10. Bicycle parking for the office buildings can feasibly and will be provided in a
manner consistent in numbers, types and locations to conform with the MLDC.

ii. Revised Office Building Lot Design and Common Area Elements: The
Applicant proposes a revised lot layout for the office component of the PUD. The
revised lot layout will creates two basic "types" of lots. The first type of lot is the
"building lot". "Building lots" will contain a building (or portion of building) and
its immediately adjacent landscaping and walkways. These lots will be owned by
the individual owners on which a particular office building is sited (or portion of
the office building). The second type of lot is the "common area" lot. The
"common area" lot contains the parking, overall landscaping, and signage for the
project. Signage will be submitted separately at a later date. The "common area"
lot will be jointly owned, managed and maintained by the owners association that
will be comprised of the owners of the "building lots". The Applicant respectfully
requests that the PUD and associated tentative subdivision plat be approved in
such a manner that the final PUD plan and final Plat be allowed to reduce the
number of building lots to as few as one subdivision lot per building,
notwithstanding that the Preliminary PUD plan and tentative subdivision plat
depict two subdivision "building" lots for each building.

This overall lot layout is similar in type and configuration to the lot layout for the
Hillcrest Office Park across North Phoenix Road from the subject PUD. This
layout and arrangement has been well received by the market and is functionally
beneficial to the tenants and owners of the project going forward.

iii. Lot Area Dimensions and Associated PUD Modification of Standards: The
revised approach to the office park component of the project is to have smaller
individual lots (essentially "pad" style "building lots") for each building (or
portion of a building). MLDC 10.702(1) provides that lots created through a PUD
process are allowed to vary from the standard lot dimensions otherwise required
for the applicable zone. In the context of the C-SIP zoning applicable to the
project (and the office building in the SFR-4 zoning approved to be built to the C
SIP standards), the proposed building lots do not comply with the base standards
for width for all lots and size for several of the lots. However, the lots size and
dimensions may, nevertheless, be approved as proposed pursuant to MLDC
10.702(1). MLDC 10.702(1) is silent on lot coverage and setback implications of
the revised lot sizes. Thus, these standards require additional modifications to the
code and the Applicant is requesting the same, as follows:

Q. Lot Coverage Modification: The C-S/P standards do not allow more than a
40 percent lot coverage. Proposed buildings will exceed this maximum for all
lots. However, this is attributable to the parking areas and much of the
landscaping areas being within a commonly owned and maintained parking
lot. The office park portion of the project is 2.91 acres in total or 127,000
square feet. The total building square footage is 20,891+1-. As such. The
project as a whole complies with the lot coverage standard in a manner that is

Page 62
Page 12 of20



Findings of Fact and C"'nclusions of Law C
Appl'cation for Revision of app PUC and newTentative Subdivision Plat
MichaelT. Mahar: App:icant -

consistent with the intent and purpose of the standard. Applicant, requests a
code modification to allow lot coverage be applied to the project as a whole
and that individual buildings reviewed through SPAC only be required to
comply with lot coverage as computed for the entire project.

b. Setback Modification: It is difficult on a project such as this to know where
the "front yard" is in the context of individual buildings. Regardless the C
SIP standard for a front yard or street side-yard setback along North Phoenix
Road is 10 feet. Several of the proposed buildings will not comply with this
standard between the building and the individual building lot lines. However,
all the buildings will satisfy the setbacks to the exterior boundaries of the
project (i.e. from the building to the right-of-way line of North Phoenix
Road). The Applicant requests a code modification to allow setbacks to be
measured to the exterior boundaries of the project and not between individual
buildings and their respective "building lots".

J. Narrative (and associated Rationale) for the PUD: Nothing in the proposed PUD
revisions will result in a substantive change to the basis and rationale for the PUD as
a whole upon which the PUD was originally approved. The PUD will still result in a
mix of office and residential land uses that are designed in a manner that is attractive
and appropriate given the project location being sandwiched between a Major Arterial
Street, being North Phoenix Road and a large-scale recreation use, being the Rogue
Valley Country Club generally, and the golf course's 10th Fairway specifically. The
office component of the project will complement the office uses at Hillcrest Office
Park across the street while providing an attractive land use adjacent to the RVCC
10th Fairway. The one minor change in the rationale is the desire for a "pad-lot style"
commercial office project; this is an ownership and land configuration pattern that has
been accepted by the market and financing entities and is relatively easy to administer
from a real estate management perspective.

K. Land Division: The proposed land division is depicted on the Tentative Plat, see
Exhibit 8. The land division plan proposes the creation of up to 6 individual lots to be
occupied by buildings and their immediately surrounding landscaping. These
individual "building lots" are adjacent to common area where parking, circulation and
project landscaping are located. The land division will also formally separate a parcel
to the south that was physically separated from the subject property when North
Phoenix Road was extended to connect to Foothills Road over ten years ago by the
City of Medford; this parcel is not part of the existing or revised PUD.

9. Neighborhood Meeting: The Applicant conducted a neighborhood meeting in
accordance with the requirements of the MLDC. Attached to this land use application are
the Neighborhood Meeting Certificate of Mailing Form and the Neighborhood Meeting
Verification Form, The meeting was held at 6:00PM on July 16, 2014 at the Rogue
Valley Country Club and was attended by seven property owners (sign-up sheet attached)
and the Applicant representatives Jay Harland and Randy Jones.

10. Impacts to Essential (Category "A") Public Facilities: Due to the reduction in office
building sizes, and associated modification to Discretionary Condition #2, this amendment
is not expected to have an appreciable effect on the demand for Category A public
facilities when compared to the current and valid PUD approval. Similarly, the revised lot

Page 63
Page 13of20



Findings of Fact and C" n c lu s io n s of Law r
•Application forRevision of appl. i PUC and newTentative Subdivision Plat
Michael T. Mahar. Appiicanl , -

layout for the office buildings is not expected to have an appreciable effect on the demand
for Category A public facilities when compared to the current and valid PUD approval.

v

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

The following conclusions of law are based on the evidence enumerated in Section II and the
findings of fact contained above in Section IV of this document and relate to the approval
criteria for a Preliminary PUD Plan and Tentative Subdivision Plat Approval. The approval
criteria are recited verbatim below and are followed by the conclusions of law of the
Planning Commission:

A. PLANNED UNITDEVELOPMENT

Planned Unit Development (PUD) Approval Criteria

PUD Revision Criterion 1

10.245 Revision or Termination of a PUO

A. Revision of a Preliminaryor Final PUD Plan: The expansionor modificationof a PUD approved under
earlier PUD ordinancesof the City or the revision of a Preliminaryor Final PUD Plan shall follow the
same proceduresrequired for initial approvalof a PreliminaryPUD Plan in this Section, provided:

1. Applicant for Revision; Filing Materials; Procedures: An application to revisean approvedPUD
Plan shall be on forms supplied by the City. The applicationform shall bear the signatureof the
owner(s) who control a majority interest in more than fifty percent (50%) of the vacant land covered
by the approved PUD and who are also the owner(s) of land and improvements within the PUD
which constilute more than fifty percent (50%) of the total assessed value of vacantportion of the
PUD. For changes deemed by the PlanningDirector to be minor but not de minimis, the Planning
Director shall exercise appropriatediscretionunder Section 10.235(8) to limit or waive the submittal
of filing materialsdeemed to be excessive, repetitive or unnecessarybased upon the scope and
nature of the proposedPUD revisions. PUD revisions shall follow the sameproceduresused for
initial approval of a PreliminaryPUD Plan.

Conclusions of Law: Based upon the facts found in Item #5 of the Findings of Fact in
Section IV above, the Planning Commission concludes that Mike Mahar is the Applicant and
that he owns more than 50% of the vacant land covered by the approved PUD and also owns
more than 50% of the total assessed value of the of the vacant portion of the PUD. Based
upon the record, the Planning Commission further concludes that the Applicant has provided
all the requisite materials for the nature and scope of the PUD revision. Based upon the
balance of the conclusions of law provided herein, the Planning Commission further
concludes that the PUD revision has followed the same procedures used for the initial
approval.

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *
PUD Revision Criterion 2

2. Consolidated Procedure: At the discretionof the PlanningDirector, revisionsto an approvedPUD
Plan may be consolidated into a single procedure, the effect of which will be the approvalof both a
PreliminaryPUD Plan and Final PUD Plan by the Planning Commission.

Conclusions of Law: The Planning Commission concludes that the Applicant has not
requested approval of a Final PUD Plan and the existing PUD has an approved Final PUD

Page 64
Page 14 of 20



.Findings of Fact and C'lnclusions of Law C
ApplicationforRevision ofapp I PUCand newTentative Subdivision Plat
Michael T. Mahar: Applicant

Plan. The existing Final PUD plan will remain in effect until a revised Final PUD plan
consistent with the PUD revision approved herein has been approved by the Planning
Commission.

* * * * "' * * * * * * *,, "' * ** * *
PUD Revision Criterion 3

3. Burden of Proof, Criteria for Revisions: The burden of proof and supporting findings of fact and
conclusions of law for the criteria In Subsections 10.235(0) or 10.240(G), as applicable, shall be
strictly limited to the specific nature and magnitude of the proposed revision. However, It Is further
provided that the design and development aspects of the whole PUD may be relied upon in
reaching findings of fact and conclusions of law for the criterion at Subsection 10.235(D)(5). It is
further provided that before the Planning Commission can approve a PUD Plan revision. it must
determine that the proposed revision is compatible with existing developed portions of the whole
PUD. '

Conclusions of Law: The Planning Commission concludes that its review has properly been
limited to the specific nature and magnitude of the proposed revision and the revision has
properly relied upon the design and development aspects of the whole PUD. The Planning
Commission further concludes that there is nothing about the proposal that reduces the size
of the buildings by approximately one third to accommodate medical office uses and
switches the land ownership pattern for office component to a 'pad-lot style" from individual
lots that would render the revisions incompatible in any way with the existing developed
portions of the whole PUD.

**"' * ************* .*
10.235 Preliminary PUD Plan- Application Procedures.

D. Approval Criteria for Preliminary PUC Plan: The Planning Commission shall approve a Preliminary PUD
if it concludes that compliance exists with each of the following criteria:3

PUD Criterion 1
1. The proposed PUD

a. preserves an important natural feature of the land, or
b. includes a mixture of residential and commercial land uses, or
c. includes a mixture of housing types In residential areas, or
d. includes open space, common areas, or other elements intended for common ownership, or
e. is otherwise required by the Medford Land Development Code.

Conclusions of Law: Based upon the evidence, the Planning Commission concludes the
existing PUD includes a mix of residential and commercial uses and the revised PUD will
also contain a mix of residential and commercial land uses.

'" * • * * • * • * * * * * * * * * * *
PUD Criterion 2

2. The proposed PUD complies with the applicable requirements of this Code, or

a. the proposed modified applications of the Code are related specifically to the implementation of the
rationale for the PUD as described in Section 10.235(8)(3)(a), and

3 The Applicantobserves that the PlanningCommission is under the same obligation to apply the criteria 10 a revision as it
was the original application and that retentionof previously imposed conditionsthat are not necessary to satisfy the relevant
substantivecriteria is no more properthan imposition of such conditionson the originalapproval.

Page 65
Page 15 of20



.Fin d ing s of Fact and C"In c lu s io n s of Law r
Application for Revision of app I PUD and new Tentative Subdivision Plat l
Michael T. Mahar: Applicant

b. the proposed modifications enhance the development as a whole resulting In a more creative and
desirable project. and

c. the proposed modifications to the limitations, restrictions. and design slandards of this Code will not
materially Impair the function, safety, or efficiency of the circulation system or the development as a
whole.

Conclusions of Law: The Planning Commission concludes that there is nothing in the
proposed PUD revisions that changes the rationale and basis for the code modifications under
the pun ordinance already approved. The Planning Commission further concludes that the
additional code modifications concerning setbacks and lot coverage are typical for "pad
style" commercial office developments where the interior lots for buildings are very close to
the exterior building lots themselves and are appropriate for the following reasons:

• The Planning Commission concludes the new code modifications to allow
reduced setbacks and increased lot coverage are the direct result of the minor
change in PUD rationale to create "pad-lot style" building lots for the office
commercial building lots.

• The Planning Commission concludes the new code modifications to allow
reduced setbacks and increased lot coverage are more creative and desirable
because they allow the common areas to be designed and managed as a unit
which will yield a more consistent appearance over the life of the project.

• The Planning Commission concludes that one of the reasons that office
commercial projects are moving to the "pad-lot style" configurations is
precisely because it creates a common open space area that is jointly owned
and managed by the commercial office building owners. This arrangement is
beneficial to both the safety, capacity and efficiency of the circulation system
and to the development as a whole, because that circulation system is owned in
common by the owners of the buildings who use it for parking and circulation.
The proposed setback and lot coverage code modifications are necessary to
create this type of property configuration in a land efficient manner.

* * * * * * * ** * * * **** * * *

PUD Criterion 3
3. The property is nol subject 10 any of the following measures or if subject thereto the PUD can be approved

under the standardsand criteria thereunder:

a. Moratorium on Construction or Land Development pursuant to DRS 197.505 through 197.540, as
amended.

b. Public FacilitiesStrategy pursuant to ORS 197.768 as amended.
c. Limited ServiceArea adopted as part of the Medford Comprehensive Plan.

Conclusions of Law: The Planning Commission concludes the existing approved PUD was
not found to be subject to any of the above and there is nothing in the application revision
that would cause the PUD revision to be subject to any of the above.

** ** ** * * * * ** * * * * * * *

PUD Criterion 4
4. The location, size, shape and character of all common elements in the PUD are appropriate for their

intended use and function.

Page 16 of 20

Page 66



Findings of Fact and C'lnclusions of Law
Application for Revision of app PUD and new Tentative Subdivision Plat
Michael T. Mahar: Applicant

Discussion; Conclusions of Law: The Planning Commission concludes that the proposed
common elements will provide for appropriate parking and landscaping for a variety of
commercial office uses - including medical office - and that this change is the central basis
upon which the PUD revisions have been requested.

"''''''''''''''''*'''*'''*''''''''''''''''''''''''
PUD Criterion 5

5. If the Preliminary PUD Plan Includes uses not allowed In the underlying zone pursuant to Subsection
1O.230(D)(7)(c), the applicant shall alternatively demonstrate that either: 1) demands for the Category "A"
public facilities listed below are equivalent or less than for one or more permitted use listed for the
underlying zone, or 2) the property can be supplied by the time of development with the following Category
"AO public faclllties which can be supplied In sufficient condition and capacity to support development of the
proposed use:

a. Public sanitary sewerage collect/on and treatment facilities.
b. Public domestic water distribution and treatment facilities
c. Storm drainage facilities.
d. Public streets.

Determination of compliance with this criterion shall be based on standards of public facility adequacy as set
forth in this Code and in goals and policies of the comprehensive plan which by their language and context
function as approval criteria for comprehensive plan amendments, zone changes or new development. In
instances where the Planning Commission determines that there is insufficient public facility capacity to
support the development of a particular use, nothing in this criterion shall prevent the approval of early
phases of a phased PUD which can be supplied with adequate public facilities.

Conclusions of Law: The Planning Commission concludes that nothing about the reduced
building sizes to allow for a full complement of office commercial uses is expected to affect
the demand for public sanitary sewerage collection and treatment or water supply or storm
drainage or public streets.

'" '" '" '" '" '" '" '" '" '" '" '" '" '" '" '" '" '" '"
PUD Criterion 6

6. If the Preliminary PUD Plan includes uses proposed under Subsection 10.230(D)(7)(c), approval of the PUD
shall also be subject to compliance with the conditional use permit criteria in Section 10.248.

Conclusions of Law: The Planning Commission concludes the PUD revision sought herein
is entitled to rely upon approved portions of the PUD and the office uses not permitted in the
SFR-4 zoning district were approved under the existing PUD approval and the scope and
nature of this revision does not require these uses to be approved anew.

'" '" '" '" * '" '" '" '" '" '" '" '" '" '" '" '" '" '"
PUD Criterion 7

7. If approval of the PUD application includes the division of land or the approval of other concurrent
development permit applications as authorized in Subsection 10.230(C), approval of the PUD shall also be
subject to compliance with the substantive approval criteria in Article II for each of the additional
development applications.

Conclusions of Law: The Planning Commission concludes the Applicant is requesting land
division and the application has addressed the approval criteria for land division.

'" * * '" '" '" * '" '" '" * '" '" '" '" '" '" '" '"

Page 17 er ao
Page 67



.Fin d in g s of Fact and r-'ln c lu s ion s of Law (r-
Application for Revision of app( PUC and newTentativeSubdivisionPlat '-
MichaelT. Mahar: Applicant

B. LAND DIVISION - TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION PLAT

Land Divis/on Approval Criteria

10.270 Land Division Criteria.

The approving authority (PlanningCommission) shall not approve any tentaliveptal unlessII first finds Ihat, the
proposed land division togetherwith the provisions for Its designand Improvement:

Land Division Criterion 1

(1) Is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, any other applicable specificplans thereto. and all applicable
designstandards set forth InArticle IV and V;

Discussion; Conclusions of Law : The Planning Commission concludes there are no specific
plans applicable to this area and there are no goals or policies that function as approval
criteria for the subject application. The Planning Commission further concludes that the
design complies with all applicable design standards of Article IV and V except
modifications to the code specifically approved under the pun ordinance and where lot size
and dimensions are varied from the base zoning district standards by approval of the pun
herein above.

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * ** ** *

Land Division Criterion 2

(2) Will not preventdevelopment of the remainder of the property under the sameownership, if any,or of
adjoining land or of access thereto. In accordance with this Chapter;

Conclusions of Law: The land division proposed does not change the accessibility or
developability of the remainder of the property or the adjacent property in any way. The
adjacent property to the west has already been lotted for residential development. The
property adjacent to the south contains the 101h Fairway of the Rogue Valley Country Club
Golf Course. As such, the property is already fully developed and accessible from the rest of
the course. As small triangle of the Applicant's property has been developed and maintained
as part of the existing golf course. The Applicant intends to quit claim this portion of the
property to the golf course following the completion of this action.

The remainder of the subdivided property to the southeast is already physically separated
from the rest of the property due to the construction of North Phoenix Road. The remainder
has legal access for development from the adjoining subdivision. Based upon the Evidence
in Section II and the Findings of Fact in Section IV, the Planning Commission concludes that
there is no property under the same ownership or adjoining land that will be prevented from
developing as a result of the proposed land division.

** *** * * ** * * ** *** ** *
Land Division Criterion 3

(3) Bearsa name thathas been approved by the approving authority and does not use a wordwhich is the
same as, similarto, or pronounced the sameas a word in the nameof any olher subdivision in the Cityof
Medford; exceptfor the words "town", "city", "place". "court", "addition". or similarwords; unlessthe land
plattedis contiguous to and platted by the same applicant that plattedthe land division bearing that name; or
unlessthe applicant files and records the consentof the partywho platted the land divisionbearing thal
name and the block numbers continue thoseof the plat of the same namelast filed;

Page 18 of 20

Page 68



.Fin d in g s of Fact and C"'lnclusions of Law (
Application for Revisionof app I PUD and newTentativeSubdivision Plat
MichaelT. Mahar: Applicant ......

Conclusions of Law: The proposed subdivision is to retain the name previously approved
101b Fairway Office Park, which is part of the10th Fairway Subdivision.

*******************
Land Division Criterion 4

(4) Includesthe creationof streets, that suchstreetsare laid out to conform, within the limits of the City of
Medford and its Urban Growth Boundary, to the plats of land divisionsalreadyapproved for adjoining
property unless the approving authoritydetermines it is in the public interest to modifythe street pallern:

Discussion; Conclusions of Law: The Planning Commission concludes the proposed land
division will not create any new public streets and the private street Signature Court has
already been substantially constructed.

* * * * * * * * * * * * * '" * '" * * *
Land Division Criterion 5

(5) Hasstreets that are proposed to be held for private use, that they are distinguished from the publicstreeton
the tentativeplat. and reservations or restrictions relating to the private streetsare set forth;

Conclusions of Law: The Planning Commission concludes Signature Court is distinguished
as a private street on the plat. See, Exhibit 8.

*******************
Land Division Criterion 6

(6) Will not cause an unmitigated land useconflict between the land division and adjoining agricultural lands
within the EFU (Exclusive Farm Use)zoningdistrict.

Discussion; Conclusions of Law: Based upon the evidence, the Planning Commission
concludes the project is a considerable distance from the nearest EFU district and will not,
therefore, create an unmitigated land use conflict with adjoining agricultural lands.

* * * * * '" * * * '" '" '" * '" * * * '" '"

Page19 of 20

Page 69



· . ,Fin d in g s of Fact and P ....nclusions of Law
Application for Revision of app l PUCand newTentative Subdivision Plat
MichaelT. Mahar: Applicant \...

VI

ULTIMATE CONCLUSIONS

(.

Based upon the preceding findings of fact and conclusions of law, it is ultimately concluded
that the case for revision to the Preliminary PUD Plan approval and a new Tentative
Subdivision Plat approval is consistent with all of the relevant criteria in the Medford Land
Development Code (MLDC) as hereinabove enumerated and addressed.

Findings Dated: December 29,2014

Respectfully submitted on behalfofApplicant:

CSA Planning, LTD.

U-UA--
Consulting Planner

Page 70
Page20 of20



Continuous Improvement CustomerService

CITY OF MEDFORD

RECEIVEO
MAR 18 2 i5

PLANNING DEPT.

Date: 3/18/2015
File Number: PUD-15-011/LDS-15-012

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT STAFF REPORT
loth FAIRWAY OFFICE PARK

Project: Consideration of a request for a revision to 10th Fairway Office Park
Planned Unit Development and tentative plat for a 7-lot commercial
subdivision on two parcels totaling 3.79 acres.

Location: Located on the south side of North Phoenix Road, approximately 370 feet
south of Hillcrest Road. 371W28A TL 3306 & 371W28AA TL 202

Zoning: SFR-4 (Single Family Residential- 4 dwelling units per gross acre) and C
SIP/RZ (Service Commercial and Professional Office/Restricted Zoning).

Applicant: Michael T. Mahar

NOTE: The items listed here shall be completed and accepted prior to the respective
issuances of permits and certificates:

Prior to issue of the first building permit, the following items shall be completed
and accepted:

• Submittal and approval of plans for site grading and drainage
• Submittal and approval of plans for public improvements and work within the

public right-of-way, if required.

Prior to issue of Certificate-of-Occupancy for completed structures, the following
items shall be completed and accepted:

• Paving ofall on-site parking and vehicle maneuvering areas
• Certification by the design engineer that the stonnwater quality and detention

system was constructed per the approved plan.

The City of Medford Planning Commission and Public Works Department's conditions
of Approval for PUD-04-16l were adopted by Order of the Medford Planning
Commission. These adopted conditions shall remain in full force as originally adopted
except as amended or added to below.

P:\Staff Reports\PUO\PUO-lS·0 11.LOS-15·012\PUO 15·011 LOS 15·012 10[h Fairway Office Park Staff Report· OB.docx Page 1

PUBLICWORKS DEPARTMENT 200 S. IVYSTREET
ENGINEERING & DEVELOPMENT DIVISION MEDFORD, OREGON 97501

www.ci.medford.or.us

Page 71

TELEPHONE(541) 774·2100
CITYO~~~1t2552

EXHIBIT#-..=T=-__
FIIe# Puo-I5-G\ \ /iJ::S= 15'-OI~



A. STREETS

1. Dedications
No right-of-way dedication is required. North Phoenix Road is classified as a major arterial
street, and in accordance with Medford Land Development Code (MLDC) Section 10.428, it
requires a total right-of-way width of 100 feet. The existing right-of-way appears to be 100 feet.

In accordance with MLDC 10.471, the property owner shall dedicate a 10 foot wide public
utility easement (PUE) adjacent to the right-of-way line on North Phoenix Road.

2. Public Improvements

a. Public Streets

All standard street section improvements have been completed on North Phoenix Road,
including pavement, curb and gutter and sidewalk. No additional street improvements will be
required.

b. Street Lights

The Developer shall protect and preserve all existing street lighting, power supply, and
appurtenances. All street lights and signing outside of the public right-of-way will be private and
maintained by the Property Owners Association.

c. Pavement Moratoriums

There is no pavement cutting moratorium on North Phoenix Road at this frontage.

3. Access and Circulation

The access to this site from North Phoenix Road may be restricted to right-in/right-out vehicle
turning movements in the future.

4. Traffic Generation

This site is currently under restrictive zoning with trip cap limitations. Trip generation
limits will need to be addressed with the Public Works Traffic Division.

B. SANITARY SE\VERS

A separate private sanitary sewer lateral shall be constructed to each buildable tax lot prior
to approval of the Final Plat. All public sanitary sewers shall be constructed to the standards of
the Department of Environmental Quality in addition to standards approved by the City of
Medford. The city requires that all public sanitary sewer mains be located within paved

P:\ Staff Reports \ PUD\ PUO-15-01!J.DS·15 ·0 12\PUD15·011 LOS 15-012 10th Fairway Office Park Staff Report - OB.docx Page 2

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 200 S. IVY STREET
ENGINEERING & DEVELOPMENT DIVISION MEDFORD, OREGON 97501

www .cLmedford or us

Page 72

TELEPHONE (541) 774-2100
FAX (541) 774-2552



roadways. If the sanitary sewer mains are located within private streets an Access and
Maintenance easement will be shown on the Final Plat for City access and maintenance of the
sanitary sewer mains.

C. STORM DRAINAGE

1. Drainage Plan

A comprehensive drainage plan showing the entire project site with sufficient spot elevations to
determine direction ofrunoff to the proposed drainage system, and also showing elevations on
the proposed drainage system, shall be submitted with the building permit application for
approval.

Upon completion of the project, the developer's design engineer shall certify that the
construction of the controlled storm water release drainage system was constructed per plan.

2. Grading

A comprehensive grading plan showing the relationship between adjacent property and the
proposed subdivision will be submitted with the public improvement plans for approval. The
Developer shall be responsible that the final grading of the development shall be in compliance
with the approved grading plan.

3. Detention and Water Quality

Storm water quality and detention facilities shall be required in accordance with Medford Land
Development Code Section 10.481 and 10.729.

4. Certification

Upon completion of the project, and prior to certificate ofoccupancy of the building, the
developer's design engineer shall certify that the construction of the stormwater quality and
detention system was constructed per plan. Certification shall be in writing and submitted to the
Engineering Division of Public Works. Reference Rogue Valley Stormwater Quality Design
Manual, Appendix I, Technical Requirements.

5. Erosion Prevention and Sediment Control

All development that disturbs 5,000 square feet or greater shall require an Erosion Prevention
and Sediment Control Plan. Developments that disturb one acre and greater shall require a
1200C permit from the Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ). Erosion Prevention and
Sediment Control Plans shall be submitted to the Building Department with the project plans for
development. All disturbed areas shall be covered with vegetation or properly stabilized prior to
certificate of occupancy.

P:\Staff Reports\PUD\PUO·1 5·0 1U .OS·lS·01Z \PUD 15·011 LOS 15·012 10th Fairway Office Park Staff Report· DB.docx Page 3

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 200 S. IVY STREET
ENGINEERING & DEVELOPMENT DIVISION MEDFORD, OREGON 97501

WINW.ci.medford.or.u5

Page 73

TELEPHONE (541) 774-2100
FAJ«541) 774-2552



D. SURVEY MONUMENTATION

All survey monumentation shall be in place, field-checked, and approved by the City Surveyor
prior to the final"walk-through" inspection of the public improvements by City staff.
E. GENERAL CONDITIONS

1. Design Requirements and Construction Drawings

All public improvements shall be constructed in accordance with the "Engineering Design
Standards for Public Improvements", adopted by the Medford City Council. Copies of this
document are available in the Public Works Engineering office.

2. Construction Plans

Construction drawings for any public improvements for this project shall be prepared by a
professional engineer currently licensed in the State ofOregon, and submitted to the Engineering
Division of Medford Public Works Department for approval. Approval shall be obtained prior to
beginning construction. Only a complete set of construction drawings (3 copies) shall be
accepted for review, including plans and profiles for all streets, minimum access drives, sanitary
sewers, storm drains, and street lights as required by the Site Plan and Architectural
Commission's Final Order, together with all pertinent details and calculations. The Developer
shall pay a deposit for plan review and construction inspection prior to final plan approval.
Public Works will keep track of all costs associated with the project and, upon our acceptance of
the completed project, will reconcile the accounting and either reimburse the Developer any
excess deposit or bill the Developer for any additional amount not covered by the deposit. The
Developer shall pay Public Works within 60 days of the billing date or will be automatically
turned over for collections.

3. Construction and Inspection

The Developer or Developer's contractor shall obtain appropriate right-of-way permits from the
Department of Public Works prior to commencing any work within the public right-of-way that
is not included within the scope of work described within approved public improvement plans.
Pre-qualification is required of all contractors prior to application for any permit to work in the
public right-or-way.

4. Site Improvements

All on-site parking and vehicle maneuvering areas related to this development shall be paved in
accordance with MLDC, Section 10.746, prior to issuance of certificate of occupancy for any
structures on the site. Curbs shall be constructed around the perimeter of all parking and
maneuvering areas that are adjacent to landscaping or unpaved areas related to this site. Curbs
may be deleted or curb cuts provided wherever pavement drains to a water quality facility.

P:\Staff Reports\PUD\ PUD·lS-01CLDS·1 S·0 1Z\PUD 15·011 LOS 15·012 10th Fairway Office Park Staff Report- DB,docx Page 4

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 200 S. IVY STREET
ENGINEERING & DEVELOPMENTDIVISION MEDFORD,OREGON 97501

www.cLmedford .or.U5

Page 74

TELEPHONE (541) 774-2100
FAX (541) 774-2552



5. System Development Charges
Buildings in this development are subject to street, storm drain, sanitary sewer collect ion and
treatment system development charges (SDC) . All SOC fees shall be paid at the time individual
building permits are issued .

Prepared by: Kris Lillie, RH2 Engineering

P:\ Staff Report s\PUD\ PUD-1S-Ol l_LDS-15·0 12\PUD IS -OIl LOS 15-012 10th Fairway Office Park Staff Report - DB.docx Page 5

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 200 S. IVYSTREET
ENGINEERING & DEVELOPMENTDIVISION MEDFORD,OREGON97501

www .ci.medford.or.us

Page 75

TELEPHONE(541) 774-2100
F~(541)774-2552



o
SUMMARY CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
10th Fairway Office Park
PUD-15-011 / LDS-15-012

A. Streets

Street Dedications to the Public:

No street dedications are required for this development.

Improvements:

o

No additional street improvements are required for this development.

Traffic Generation:

Restrictive Zoning needs to be addressed.

B. Sanitary Sewer:

Provide a separate private sanitary sewer lateral to each buildable tax lot.

c. Storm Drainage:

Provide a comprehensive grading and drainage plan.

Provide water quality and detention facilities , calculations and O&M Manual.

Provide engineers certification ofstonnwater facility construction.

Provide copy of an approved Erosion Control Permit (1200C) from DEQ for this project.

D. Survev Monumentation:

Complete survey monumentation prior to the final "walk through" inspection of the
public improvements.

The above summary is for convenience only and does not supersede or negate the full report in any way. If
there is any discrepancy between the above list and the full report, the full report shall govern. Refer to the
full report for details on each item liS well as miscellaneous requirements for the project, including
requirements for public improvement plans (Construction Plans), design requirements, phasing, draft and
final plat processes, permits, system development charges, pavement moratoriums and construction
inspection.

P:\ SliJffReports \PUD\ PUD-15-01 U .DS·15· 012\ PUD IS-OIl LDS 15·012 10th Fairway Office Park Staff Report - DB.docx Page 6

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 200 S. IVY STREET
ENGINEERING & DEVELOPMENT DIVISION MEDFORD. OREGON 97501

wwwci medford or.us

Page 76

TELEPHONE (541) 774-2100
FAX (541) 774·2552



LAND DEVELOPMENT REPORT - PLANNING

RECEIVED
MAR 18 2015

PLANNING DEPT.

00 S . I vy Street , Room #l BO
Medf ord, OR 97501

Phone : 77 4-2 300 ; Fa x : 541-774-2514 ;
www .med f o r d f i r e r e s c ue .o r g

Mea~ord Fi r e Department
(

To: Sarah Sousa

From: Greg Kleinberg

LD Meeting Date: 03/18/2015

Report Prepared: 03/10/2015

Applicant: Michael T. Mahar, Applicant (eSA Planning Ltd ., Agent)

File #: PUC -15 - 11 Associated File #'s: LOS -15 - 12

Site Name/Description: Revision to 10th Fairway Office Park PUD

Consideration of a request for a revision to 10th Fairway Office Park Planned Unit Developmen t and tentative plat for a
7-Iot commercial subdivision on two parcels totaling 3.79 acres located on the south side of North Phoenix Road,
approximately 370 feet south of Hillcrest Road, within an SFR-4 (Single Family Residential - 4 dwelling units per gross
acre) and C-S/P/RZ (Service Commerc ial and Professional Office/Restricted Zoning) zoning district; Michael T. Maha r,
Applicant (CSA Planning Ltd., Agent) . Sarah Sousa. Planner.

Requirement FIRE HYDRANTS

Fire hydrants with reflectors will be required for this project.

OFC 508.5

Hydrant locations shall be as follows : Two (2) new internal fire hydrants will be required.

Additional hydrants may be required to comply with the requirement of proximity to fire department connections (for
fire sprinkler and standpipe systems. the fire department connection shall be located at an approved location away
from the building and within 75' of a fire hydrant. The fire department connection shall be located on the same side
as the fire department access route.).

The approved waler supply for fire protection (hydrants) is required to be installed prior to construction when
combustible material arrives at the site.

Plans and specifications for fire hydrant system shall be submitted to Medford Fire Department for review and
approval prior to construction. Submittal shall include a copy of this review (OFC 501.3).

Requirement PRIVATE FIRE DEPARTMENT ACCESS PARKING RESTRICTION

Curbs at the entran ce driveway shall be painted red and stenciled as stated below.

OFC 503.4

Fire apparatus access roads 20-26 ' wide shall be posted on both sides as a fire lane. Fire apparatus access roads
more than 26' to 32' wide shall be posted on one side as a fire lane (OFC 01 03.6.1).

Curbs shall be painted red along the entire distance of the fire department access. Minimum 4" white letters stating
"NO PARKING-FIRE LANE" shall be stenciled on the curb at 25-foot intervals.

Fire appara tus access roads shall not be obstructed in any manner. including the parking of vehicles . The minimum

CITY OF MEDFORD
EXHIBIT #-"::r=---=-:-___

03/10/2015 11:48 Flle# f\,.)o-15-o\\ PLfo>- [:;'-CIL

Page 77



Med~ord Fire Department
/ ) 0 S . Ivy Street , Room #180

Med f or d, OR 97501
Phone: 7 74 - 2 300; Fax : 541- 7 74 - 25 1 4 ;

www. med f o r d f i r e r e s cue.org

LAND DEVELOPMENT REPORT - PLANNING

To: Sarah Sousa

From: Greg Kleinberg

LD Meeting Date: 03/18/2015

Report Prepared: 03/10/2015

Applicant: Michael T. Mahar, Applicant (CSA Planning Ltd., Agent)

File #: PUD -15 - 11 Associated File #'s: LOS ·15 - 12

Site Name/Description: Revision to 10th Fairway Office Park PUD

widths (20' wide) and clearances (13' 6" vertical) shall be maintained at all times (OFC 503.4; ORS 98.810-12).

This restriction shall be recorded on the property deed as a requirement for future construction.

Requirement FD APPARATUS ACCESS ROAD DESIGN OFC 503.2.1

Fire apparatus access roads shall have an unobstructed width of not less than 20 feet and unobstructed vertical
clearance of not less than 13 feet 6 inches. The required width of a fire apparatus access road shall not be
obstructed in any manner, including parking of vehicles. Minimum required widths and clearances established under
section 503.2.1, shall be maintained at all times. The fire apparatus access road shall be constructed as asphalt.
concrete or other approved driving surface capable of supporting the imposed load of fire apparatus weighing at
least 60,000 pounds.
(See also OFC 503.4; 0102.1)

The turning radius on fire department access roads shall meet Medford Fire Department requirements (OFC
503.2.4).

Development shall comply with access and water supply requirements in accordance with the Fire Code
in affect at the time of development submittal.
Fire apparatus access roads are required to be installed prior to the time of construction. The approved
water supply for fire protection (hydrants) is required to be installed prior to construction when
combustible material arrives at the site.
Specific fire protection systems may be required in accordance with the Oreqon Fire Code.

This plan review shall not prevent the correction of errors or violations that are found to exist during
construction. This plan review is based on the information provided only.

Desi n and installation shall meet the Ore on re uirements of the IBC IFC IMC and NFPA standards.

03/10/2015 11:48

Page 78

Pag 2



Memo
RECEIVED
MAR 18 2015

PLANNING DEPT.

To: Sarah Sousa, Planner, Planning Department

From: TannerFairrington, BUilding Department

cc: Michael T. Mahar, Applicant; CSAPlanning Ltd., Agent

Date: March17,2015

Re: March18,2015 LDCMeeting: PUD-15-Q11/ LDS-15-Q12 -Item #1

Please Note:

This is not a plan review. These are general notes based on general information provided. Plans
need to be submitted and will be reviewed by a commercial plans examiner to determine if there are
any other requirements for this occupancy type.

Fees are based on valuation. Please contact the front counter for estimated fees.

1. For list of applicable BUilding Codes, please visit the City of Medford website: www.cLmedford.or.us
Clickon "CityDepartments" at topof screen; clickon "Building"; click on "Code and Design Information"
on leftsideof screen; clickon "Design Criteria"; andselect theappropriate design criteria.

2. All plans areto be submitted electronically. Information on the website: www.ci.medford.or.us Click
on "CityDepartments" at topof screen; clickon "Building"; clickon "Electronic Ptan Review (ePlans)" on
left sideof screen for information.

General Comments:

3. The comments below are based on the site plans and elevations submitted. When final plans are
submitted, andbuilding information is provided. a morethorough reviewcanbe provided.

Site Plan

4. Accessible parking spaces to bepersection 1106.7 of the2014OSSC, inclUding figures referenced
(see Building Codes Division for 2014OSSCErrata which included thesefigures. datedOctober 16,
2014). Locations appearto be acceptable.

5. Please ensure accessible routes areprovided fromaccessible parking spaces to mainentrances.

6. Evaluating theparking lot for turning movements for anticipated vehicles is recommended.

CllY OF MEDFORD
EXHIBIT #_K..:.......- _

AIe# PuD-fS-oI\ ILDS-15-0\'2-

Page 79 Page 1



TO:

FROM:

SUBJECT:

(

BOARD OF WATER COMMISSIONERS

StaffMemo

Planning Department, City of Medford

Rodney Grehn P.E.• Water Commission Staff Engineer

PUD-15-011 & LDS-15-012

(

RECEIVED
MAR 19 2015

PLANNING DEPT.

PARCELID:

PROJECT:

DATE:

371W28A TL 3306 & 371W28AA TL 202

Consideration of a request for a revision to 10th Fairway Office Park Planned Unit
Development and tentative plat for a 7-lot commercial subdivision on two parcels
totaling 3.79 acres located on the south side of North Phoenix Road, approximately
370 feet south of Hillcrest Road, within an SFR-4 (Single Family Residential - 4
dwelling units per gross acre) and C-S/P/RZ (Service Commercial and Professional
Office/Restricted Zoning) zoning district; Michael T. Mahar, Applicant (CSA Planning
Ltd., Agent). Sarah Sousa , Planner.

March 16, 2015

I have reviewed the above plan authorization application as requested . Conditions for approval and
comments are as follows:

CONDITIONS

1. The water facility planning/design/construction process will be done in accordance with the
Medford Water Commission (MWC) ~Regulations Governing Water Service" and "Standards For
Water Facilities/Fire Protection Systems/Backflow Prevention Devlces."

2. All parcelsllots of proposed property divisions will be required to have metered water service prior
to recordation of final map, unless otherwise arranged with MWC.

3. The existing water meters and fire hydrants that are currently installed on-site shall be protected in
place .

4. Applicants' civil engineer shall coordinate with MWC engineering staff in regards to proposed cover
over existing water main, and grades of existing water meters and fire hydrants.

5. The 8-inch water line that is currently installed across these parcels doesn't have a recorded
easement. Applicants' surveyor shall coordinate with MWC engineering department for new
easement over these existing water facilit ies.

6. Installation of an MWC approved backflow device is required for all commercial, industrial,
municipal. and multi-family developments. New backflow devices shall be tested by an Oregon
cert ified backflow tester. See MWC website for list of certified testers at the following web link
http ://www.medfordwater.org/Page.asp?NavID=35 .

COMMENTS

1. Off-site water line installation is not required.

Continued to next page

K.lLand OevelopmenllMedford PlaMillQ~U(j'5011~d$150'2 doex

Page 80

CITY OF MEDFORD
EXHIBIT # L Page ' 012

File# Pup-\S-on/L.DS- t$-CI"Z-



"

(

BOARD OF WATER COMMISSIONERS

Staff Memo

(

Continued from previous page

2. On-site water facility construction is not required.

3. Static water pressure is expected to be around 65 psi.

4. MWC-metered water service does exist to this property. There is existing water meters on-site per
previous construction plans from 2005. (See Condition 3 and 4 above)

5. Access to MWC water lines is available . There is an existing 8-inch water line located on-site that
was installed in 2005 through this proposed development with Phase 1. (see Condition 5 above)

K.ll..1nd OevelopmenllMedlcrd Ptanning\pudl5011~~15012 .llocx

Page 81



CITY OF MEDFORD
Interoffice Memo

RECEIVEO
'·!AY 0 1 2015

PLANNING DEPT

Page 82

TO: Planning Department

FROM: Pete Young, Parks & Recreation Planner

SUBJECT: LANDSCAPE /IRRIGATION REVIEW OF FILE PUD-15-0111LDS-15-012

DATE: April 22, 2015

I have reviewed the applicant's landscape plan and have the following comments:

1. The following Landscape Plan information required in Municipal Code 10.780 is missing:

F. Landscape Plan and Irrigation Plan Requirements, (3) Plan Information. The landscape or
irrigation plan shall include the following:

c. Site information:
7. Clear vision areas in accordance with Section 10.735, Clear View of Intersecting Streets.
8. Stormwater management facilities.
10. Total square footage of landscaping areas noted on the cover page.
11. Total square footage ofparking area planters noted on the cover page.

Because this review follows a relatively new code provisions, staff recommends the applicant be
allowed to make the corrections to the application during the irrigation review process which
follows this landscape plan review. The plan is generally an excellent landscape plan requiring
minimal changes.

2. There are several trees shown within parking lot planter beds that do not appear to meet the
code provision copied below without the use of structural soils.

The applicant is directed to provide "at least two cubic feet ofsoil volume .. .for each one square
foot of tree canopy at maturity".
The applicant can accomplish this by:

1) Moving the trees shown within the narrow parking lot planter beds along the southerly
edge of the parking lot to be within the long frontage landscape bed where the tree rools
have a more direct access to the proper volume of soil ;

2) Indicate the use of structural soils by placing the structural soils hatch pattern on all of the
trees that will require structural soil. An example is the Pistacia chinensis, with a canopy
spread of 30' or more shown along the southerly edge of the parking lot with no hatch
pattern calling for the installation of structural soils; and/or

3) Replace the trees with a species that will grow to a smaller mature tree canopy. This may
also be beneficial in planter beds that have parking lot lights. Caution must be given to
ensure the required number of large parking lot trees remain, but there are manY(,rnr5~r~~5FORD

EXHIBIT#-1t\__

File# ?vp-IS-ol \/LDS-IS~1'2..



in the proposed plan than are required.

Municipal Code 10.780, (10) Tree Requirements.
a. Soil Volume:
Each new or existing tree shall have sufficient soil volume to establish and maintain a root
system that will support the tree at maturity. For each tree, at least two cubic feet ofsoil
volume is required for each one square foot of tree canopy at maturity.

1. Soil volume is calculated as the landscaping area under the tree canopy, free of
impervious surface orpaving, and measured at a depth of three (3) feet.
2. For trees within parking area planters or sidewalk planters, in lieu of the soil volume
provisions above, structural soil may be utilized as an alternative material under
impervious surfaces to meet the required soil volume calculation.

3. Light poles appear to be shown within parking Jot planter beds in conflict with the mature tree
canopy. Staff recommends trees that will grow tall enough to be in conflict with the lights be
removed from the plan or replaced with a shorter tree species.

4. The Clear View Triangle is not marked on the landscape plan. Staff will need to confirm that
the Salix purpurea 'Nana' - Dwarf Arctic Willow which grows to 5 feet or more, will not obstruct
the clear vision of the project entry.

5. The project storm water facility is not indicated on the landscape plan as required, so staff is
not able to determine if there is an above ground detention facility and if the landscaping is
acceptable.

6. Municipal Code requires the applicant include on the landscape plan "The total square
footage of all landscaping areas and total percentage of landscaping areas containing high
water use landscape elements, as defined herein," It appears the proper ratios have been
applied to the proposed landscape plan, but the applicant needs to provide the proper evidence
of compliance.

This report addresses horticultural concerns only. Applicant shalf comply with all aspects of
Medford Code 10.780 Interpretation of the Medford Code will be per the Planning Department.
Aesthetic considerations will be per the Site Plan and Architectural Review Commission or
Planning Commission upon their review.

Page 83



JACKSON COUNTY
Roads

Roads
Engineering

h:cvln Christiansen
Construction Mallagl!r

200Antelope Road
WhlteCity, OR97503
Phone: (541)n4·6255
Fax:(541)n4-6295
chrislke(!l/acksoncounlY·llrg

WWN.JacksoncClunly.org

March 16, 2015

Attention: Sarah Sousa
Planning Department
City of Medford
200 South IvyStreet, Lausmann Annex, Room 240
Medford, OR 97501

RECEIVED
MAR 17 2015

PLANNING DEPT.

RE: Revision of subdivision off North Phoenix Road - a city-maintained section of the road.
Planning File: PUD-15-011/LDS-15-012.

Dear Sarah:

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the consideration for a revision to 1Qlh Fairway
Office Park Planned Unit Development and tentative plat for a 7·lot commercial subdivision on two
parcels totaling 3.79 acres located on the south side of North Phoenix Road, approximately 370 feet
south of Hillcrest Road, within an SFR·4 (Single Family Residential- 4 dwelling units per gross acre)
and C-S/P/RZ (Service Commercial and Professional Office/Restricted Zoning) zoning districl
Jackson County Roads has no comments.

If you have any questions or need further information feel free to call me at 774-6255.

Since;.e~/:L /

Jf~/~
Kevin Christiansen
Construction Manager

1:\Engineering\OeveJopmenI\CITIESIMEDFORD\2015\PUQ·2015·011 & LDS-2015'()12.docx

Page 84

CITY OF MEDFORD
EXHIBIT #-'1-+1 _

File # .PUc-IS ~\\IL.C6-(S-col~,



EXHIBIT 4

JAN 292015

PLANNING DEP1:

·-----•····-··-•·: t-----.····•···--·----·--••
I';r-- "'-"----.----r--.. ;·~~~~~+~~~~~~~~~~~itJnnn-",",~,",""""H+&1H-.J

Legend

Subject Medford GLUP

c=J Tax Lots .. CM
......&. ..
: -; Urban Growth Boundary SC.......

County UH

UR

General Land Use Plan - GLUP
Tenth Fairway P.U.D. Revision

eSA Planning, Ltd.
Nov. 20, 201<1 SOUnf:j\;J,##P

Page 85



Nov. zo, 2014 Source: CSA Planning. Ltd.; Medford GIS: Jacbon County GIS

Zoning on Aerial ~E
CITY OF MF"}FO~

Tenth Fairway P.U.D. Revisio~XHIBIT »: E:- s

File # n·:O:E!O\.~ID~Q\djH

Legend

Subject

o Tax Lots..........
: -r- Urban Growth Boundary
..... 11

• • Medford Zoni ng
2012 Aerial

CSA Planning. ltd.

EXHIBIT 3

1 inch = 400 feet

Page 86 ___________--l,~



EXHIIUT 6
JAN 292015

NW+E
S

1 inch = 200 feet
CSA Planning, ltd.

2012 Aerial
Tenth Fairway P.U.D. Revi="s.:":o:'::n:--- - ·- - - - -

Legend

SUbject

o Tax Lots
.1 ....11.
: ,.= Urban Growth Boundary.......

Nov. 10, 2014 Source: CSA PlannIng. Ltd.; Medfonl GIS; Jackson County GIS

Page 87



Uul

l. 1\)... :U. U. I) fJ\ X
1.1It NH 11UL]l ."\

. ,

---·37 IW281\
r: MEDFORD

"'~"'Rf~ ~~~I.". ;:;;

I
I I 21

'"...:s

----t

OLe 01 .....2.
E.I, e.COR.

.....,-'"

tt" £ 1OLe o
I

EXHIBIT 2 371W28A
l 0(:. :t~ -. ... .-......l't;Ill!~O RD

SEE MAl'

.....1"'.,

t.- ::u»
SEE MAl' <;

:z o~- l"

37 IW 2KAD r-. \ : (a~~
CO m-~=-.A mr..".,

-<\.
' •. "I ~

-:-;" :II:=- - - -

...

o

~ . ~w ~~
_ :<:: · ·1

I !

':
I -.

, SEE MAl':nIW211 Ar

N.H. 1/4,SEC.28,T.37S.•R.IW.•W.M.
JACKSONCOUNTY

, - a 200'

~.

.~~~...

,q"",u 1'lY alt u

-_.~= ~ - _ l-

APPRO'"

CElt SEC

.i

'..-.;",, '

--~

i;.-
~.. ...

.~

~
i!
t;

~
;t

.----:- ~i IUI"U I,!\'U4IH t J\~U

l-1~~~_

p --
<,
W I.'ff C~.
Dl.C~&

:!J
en

"*'
o '.\] ~ 0

c es ~
tu IU =t 0
,- I '11:: -n

~ I ~

~ I'70 ~t ~

~ 16 I
~

~

~

:;

I
~

",::!

!i

-0
OJ
(0
t'D
00
00

f.



t-:-I
-..::.

IIIIIrII

-:

O
N
~
n

'1
:

,'ft,I
U

.&
V

I\J
I

.,o
'
(
~

~
3:

n
:£M

A
P

J1
1...

~
m
l
J

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
f

~''
7
i

ll
-
"
~

....,

-.,
:i

."
P

age
89



April 27, 2015

Dear Sara Sousa:

Letter to Sarah Sousa
REceIVED
APR 29 2015

PLANNING DEPT.

In reference to the Public Hearing - Thursday May 14th, 2015 - 5:30 PM - Medford City Council Chambers 
City Hall- 411 W@. 8th Street - I have the following Input:

1. My Name Is: Oliver Scarvie
My Address Is: 3245 Chandler Egan Drive (Residence directly South of the above Planned Unit).

2. In case I am unable to attend the Public Meeting, I request the following considerations:
a. Construction during the summer months will naturally raise a lot of dust. Therefore,

I request maximum efforts be applied to keep the dust level minimal.
b. With the Installation of the Unit outdoor lighting fixtures, I request the illumination be directed

downward with minimal brightness.
3. I do not object to the building but wish to keep the dust output at a minimum. Also, the lighting

should point down and be of minimal brightness.
4. Thank-you for provided this method of expressing my concerns.
5. I hope they willacted on In a proper manner.

Sincerely yours,

Oliver Scarvle
.-.

cc. Mack Gossett

(

Page 1

Page 90

CITY OF MEDFORD
EXHIBIT~ ~ S

File # Pu D -,5-0 t \ / LoS- \5 ~Qlz;



Applicant:

Michael T. Mahar

0212712.015

Area of Map..---,

G
4.. . t"'l~----

~

City Limits

lri"-=-=l~ PUDll..--.J:!
~~"EJ

~ Subject Area

o Medford Zoning

~ UGH

o TaxLots

Vicinity Map
Application Name/Description:

10th Fairway Office
ParkPUD

Map/Tax)ot:

371W28A TL 3306
371W28AA TL 202

File Numbers:

PUD~15~Oll & LDS~15~012

Proposal:

Revisions to PUDand
7 lot subdivision

SFR-4

CITY OF MEDFORD .- PLANNING D EPARTMENT
... .... , . .... .

t;. t;. .;:' ( :. t;. t;.. ( ,
( :. ( ., ( " .;:,. r;:. .;: :. t;:

( : ( ' ( ; t;' t;: t;, ( ;
( , ( ; t;., ( . t;.. '/;; t;:

( " t;., t;. ( " ( ,. ( :. ( :
( . t;: .;:: ( :. ( :. ( ' t;,.

(' "sF"'R" 0""0' (, t;:.
t;' • .~ .' t;:. t;:.

t;: t;: ';:', ( ' ( :
t; ( ' ( : t;: li::' ( '

t; ' t; .. ( ; ( ; t;,.
( : ( : t;' ( ' ( ' (

( t; : ( : ( ' ( : t;:
( : ( : ( '

""0
QJ
lC
I'D
\0-


	Agenda (pages 2-3)
	30.1 Minutes of April 23, 2015 (pages 4-9)
	Old Business 50.1 CP-14-114 Memorandum (pages 10-12)
	Memo from staff responding to the letter dated March 3, 2015 from Greg Holmes (1000 Friends of Oregon) (pages 13-20)
	Revised Recommendation - Alternative 1 (pages 21-22)
	Revised Recommendation - Alternative 2 (pages 23-24)
	Revised Recommendation - Alternative 3 (pages 25-26)
	Map lof Buildable Lands Inventory (BLI) (page 27)
	New Business 50.2 PUD-15-011 / LDS-15-012 - Staff Report (pages 28-37)
	Exhibit A - Conditions of Approval (pages 38-39)
	Exhibit B - Preliminary PUD Plan (page 40)
	Exhibit C - Tentative Plat (pages 41-42)
	Exhibit D - Site Plan (page 43)
	Exhibit E - Landscape Plan (page 44)
	Exhibit F - Utility & Grading Plans (pages 45-48)
	Exhibit G - Original Preliminary PUD Plan (pages 49-50)
	Exhibit H - Applicant's Findings of Fact & Conclusions of Law (pages 51-70)
	Exhibit I - Public Works Report (pages 71-76)
	Exhibit J - Fire Department Report (pages 77-78)
	Exhibit K - Building Department Memo (page 79)
	Exhibit L - Medford Water Commission Memo (pages 80-81)
	Exhibit M - Parks & Recreation Department Memo (pages 82-83)
	Exhibit N - Jackson County Roads Letter (page 84)
	Exhibit O - General Land Use Plan Map (page 85)
	Exhibit P - Zoning Aerial Map (page 86)
	Exhibit Q - Aerial Photograph (page 87)
	Exhibit R - Jackson County Assessor's Map (pages 88-89)
	Exhibit S - Letter from Oliver Scarvie (page 90)
	Vicinity Map (page 91)
	Recommended Action: Adopt the findings as recommended by staff and direct staff to prepare a Final Order for approval of PUD-15-011/LDS-15-012 per the staff report dated May 7, 2015, including Exhibits A through S (page 36)

